Rinkai TMS Main

1 — Last update: 13 June 2022

ABM CLOUD

Table of Contents

. System installation and Login	3
2. System interface overview	4
2.1. Depot	5
2.1.1. Depot activation	6
2.1.2. Depot settings management	7
2.2. Locations	9
2.2.1. General tab	10
2.2.2. Adding a location	12
2.2.3. Edit location	17
2.2.4. Delete location	18
2.3. Orders	19
2.3.1. Adding an order	21
2.3.2. Edit order	23
2.3.3. Delete order	24
2.3.4. Import of orders	25
2.3.5. Split order	27
2.3.6. Selecting orders for planning	30
2.4. Vehicles	32
2.4.1. Add vehicles	33
2.4.2. Edit vehicle	39
2.4.3. Delete the vehicle	40
2.4.4. Import of vehicles	41
2.4.5. Activation of vehicles	42
2.4.6. Profile of the vehicle	43
2.4.7. Carriers	46
2.4.8. Drivers	47
2.4.9. GPS providers vehicles	48
2.5. Planning	49
2.5.1. Information panel	50
2.5.2. Parameters	51
2.5.3. Automatic optimization	54
2.5.4. Manual route creation	56
2.5.5. Route Header	60
2.5.6. Route view	62
2.5.7. Plan analysis	65
2.5.8. Plan export	68
2.6. Plans	69
2.7. Undelete plan/vehicle/location	71
2.8. GPS	73

2.8.1. Information panel	
2.8.2. Route view	
2.8.3. Routes and Stops	
2.8.3.1. Routes data	
2.8.3.2. Stops data	
2.8.4. Confirmed extra km and duration	
2.8.5. Wire map and unmatched positions	
2.8.6. Edit location geocodes	
2.8.7. Mail	
2.8.8. Analysis	
2.9. Map	
2.10. Menu	
2.10.1. Depot	
2.10.1.1. Units	
2.10.1.2. Vehicle types	
2.10.2. View	
2.10.2.1. Depot capacity	100
2.10.3. Reporting	101
2.10.3.1. Depot	
2.10.3.2. Locations	
2.10.3.2.1. Plan	
2.10.3.2.2. GPS	
2.10.3.2.3. Depot	110
2.10.3.3. Vehicles	111
2.10.3.4. Standings	115
2.11. Admin	116
2.11.1. Files	117
2.11.2. User management	
2.11.3. Web services	
2.11.4. Computer	
2.11.5. User	
2.11.6. Errors	
2.11.7. Log	
3. Web-portal for drivers	
3.1. Authorization	
3.2.	
3.3.	
3.4. Functionality.	
3.4.1. Map	
3.4.2. Information panel	
3.4.3. Point card	
3.4.4. Maintenance	

3.5. Location Photo	142
3.6. Adding a portal to your phone's home screen	146

1. System installation and Login

You can download the system from our <u>website</u> (Section "About the system" – Download).

Save the zip file to a local disk and extract its contents to a directory of your choice. Start the system using the rinkai-routing-launcher-win.zip file. The system automatically checks for updates and installs them immediately.

You need to log in to the system using your username and password. When logging in, you can select the applications language.



Login is created personally for each user.

Password on the first login - init.

After the first login, the password can be changed in the control panel:

Depot View	Reporting	Admin									
Km ▼ ズ	Time 🔇		Vehicles	-	Unplanned St Outsid	ide wind 👻	Delivery date	Paramet			Logout
Depots	Locatio		🗕 Vehicles 🛛 🔍 Pla	nning	Plans GPS Ma						
Activate	Edit	User 🔸	Info								
Company			Change Password		Address	Latitu	de Longitude				
ABM Cloud					Lithuania, Rudamina, Gamyklo	os g., 54.59	13 25.3270				
ABM Cloud					Lithuania, Kaišiadorys, paukštir	inink 54.86	56 24.4108				
Vince i		510 V05 V00			··· · · · · · · · · ·						

2. System interface overview

2.1. Depot

2.1.1. Depot activation

After successfully logging in, you need to select Depot from the list of depots available to your user, for which delivery routes will be built, by clicking the "Activate" button. If the user has access to only one Depot, the system will automatically select it.

Depot view hep										
Km ↓ ズ	Time	Costs (§)))	Vehicles 👻 🎇	Unplanned St 👻	Outside wind 👻	Delivery date	Paramet		→ Redo	B History
Depots	Locations 🛛 🖨 Or	rders 😐 Vehicles	Planning	Plans GPS						
Activate E	dit Number: 264									
Company		No Name		Address	Latitu	de Longitude				
ARM Cloud		10 III Koupo Gr	ndoj 10	Lithuania Rudamina G	Samuklos a 54.50	12 25 2270				

2.1.2. Depot settings management

When you click on the "Edit" button the dialog window will be shown that allows you to edit the depot settings.

Depot:

- DepotNo User depot number;
- Name Name of the depot;
- Address Address of the depot
- Longitude + Latitude Depot coordinates. You can change it by pressing the "Geocode".

 Edit 	×
Depot N	Aail SMS
No	Demo (UA)
Name	Demo Днепропетровск
Address	Днепропетровск, Героев Сталинграда 144
Latitude	48.47177
Longitude	35.00693
	Geocode
L	
	OK Cancel

Once the "Geocoding" button is pressed, the depot address can be edited in the appropriate lines and then pressing the "Geocoding" button will place the marker on the map itself.

The second option is to manually place the mark on the map. Use the mouse and the circle to move, zoom in, etc. To make a final placement, click the map + hold Ctrl. The final position confirmation is done by pressing the "OK" button.



2.2. Locations

2.2.1. General tab

Locations represent individual delivery points. At these locations, you can maintain a variety of settings and parameters described below. When activating the depot, the system itself reads all available locations. You can manually add, edit, delete, or control locations by clicking the appropriate buttons at the top of the screen.

Dep	ot View	Reporting Admin										
Km 	• ズ	Time 🕚	Costs 🕥	Vehicles 🔀	Ĩ	Unplanned 🧕	St 👻	Outside window 👻	De 2,	livery dat /15/20	e 22 🗮	Paramet
	Depots	Locations	Orders Vehicles	• Pla	nning	Plans G	ips 🧧	Мар				
	Add	Edit Delete	e Number: 645									
•	ÎŃO	Name	Addres	5	Latitude	Longitude	Time win	dow	AT@C	T@C	GWLim	Comment
		Клиент 1	Київ, ву	/л. Бере	50.4284	30.6148	00:17-20:	00	00:00	00:00		
•	10	Клиент 10	Василь	ків, вул	50.1806	30.3104	05:00-15:	00	00:03		5,500	

All location data can be simply marked "Ctrl + A" and exported via the context menu. The context menu is displayed by right-clicking over any location

•	No	Name /			Address		
•	1	Клиент 1			Київ, вул. Бер		
•	10	Клиент 10	ент 10 Сheck geocodes ент 100		ильків, вул		
•	100	Клиент 100			рвари, б-р Н		
•	101	Клиент 101	Unused locations	•	греби, вул.		
•	102	Клиент 102	Columns	×	в, вул. Анни	и	
•	103	Клиент 103	Export	•	Clipboard		
•	104	Клиент 104		Гл	CSV		
•	105	Клиент 105		Ки	Excel		
	100	100		11 .		1	

You can also view additional columns in the table, reorder columns, and then permanently save the selected column layout.

	10	Клиент 10	Charl		, вул	50.1806	30.3104	05:00-
• 1	00	Клиент 100	Check ge	ocodes 🕨	б-р Н	50.5120	30.7950	04:00-
1	01	Клиент 101	Unused lo	ocations 🕨	вул	50.5537	30.6234	04:00-
1	02	Клиент 102	Columns		Active	e as delivery le	ocation	0-
1	03	Клиент 103	Export	•	Image	25		0-
1	04	Клиент 104		Глибоке,	Arriva	l and departu	ire side	0-
1	05	Клиент 105		Київ, вул	Color			0-
1	06	Клиент 106		Київ, вул	Custo	mer factor [%	5]	0-
1	07	Клиент 107		Київ, вул	Delive	ery days		0-
1	08	Клиент 108		Київ, про	Delive	ery location		0-
1	09	Клиент 109		Бровари,	Comn	nent 2		0-
1	11	Клиент 11		Василькі	Mail			0-
1	10	Клиент 110		Зазімье,	Phone	2		0-
1	11	Клиент 111		Проліски	Pairin	a precision		0-
1	12	Клиент 112		Василькі	Time	windows		0-
1	13	Клиент 113		Василькі	Time	window prole	ngation enal	oled 0-
1	14	Клиент 114		Київ, вул	- C	, indow prote		0-
1	15	Клиент 115		Іванкови	Save	columns layou	ut	0-

2.2.2. Adding a location

Press the **"Add"** button to enter a new location. In this step, the required fields must be filled in and, if necessary, the field is optional. Mandatory fields are red in the table.

Basic Advanced	Time Windows	Delivery Days	Images
Depot	Demo K	No	
Name		Street	
No		Postcode	
City		Country	
Comment		Comment 2	
Time window	[8	
Time window			
AT@C		Latitude	
AT@C Time at customer		Latitude Longitude	
AT@C Time at customer Customer factor [%]		Latitude Longitude	Geocod

Basic

- Depot Locations depot. If only one depot is active, the value is pre-filled.
- No Internal identification number of the delivery point. This number serves as a unique identifier when importing orders and exporting finished routes.
- Name Name of delivery point.
- Street Street of delivery point. If the street is not available, leave the field empty.
- HouseNo. House number. If you do not know the number, leave the field empty.
- Postcode Postcode of the place of delivery. Correct postcodes are absolutely crucial for automatic positioning.
- City Town name.
- Country country code of the place of delivery (Czech Republic CZ, Slovakia SK, Germany DE, etc.)
- Comment Comment on delivery point. This comment can then be displayed, for example, on the route itinerary.
- · Comment 2 Second delivery point comment. The comment can then be displayed in the itinerary, for

example.

- Time window Specify the required delivery time. For one day, two intervals can be defined, for example 6:00 – 12:00 and 13:00 – 18:00. If different windows are required for different days, these can be defined in the "Advanced" tab
- AT@C Administrative time at the customer. It corresponds to the time spent on unloading by the administration or other activities that do not depend on the quantity of goods delivered. The total landing time for the customer is then equal to the sum of the administrative time and time calculated from the delivered quantity.
- Time at customer Defines the total time of unloading at the customer, regardless of the administrative time and the amount being fed.
- Customer Factor Allows you to slow down or accelerate the variable unloading time at the customer.
- Gross weight limit The requirement of a maximum vehicle tonnage for delivery.
- Longitude + Latitude You need to enter these details using the "Geocode" button.
 - The address can be edited in the appropriate fields and after pressing the "Geocoding" button, the system places the marker on the map based on the modified address.
 - You can place the tag manually by tapping the mouse + holding the CTRL key
 - Coordinates can be verified on publicly available map servers. Placement is then saved with "OK"

O Add				×
Basic Advanced	Time Windows	Delivery Days	Images	
Delivery location				Edit Dele
Side	Both 👻	Pairing precis	ion	
Color	None -			
Mail				
Notifications	/			
Phone				
Notifications				
Time window prolo	ngation enabled	\checkmark		
Active as delivery lo	ocation	\checkmark		
	OK	Cancel		
	UN	cancer		

Advanced

- Delivery location You can assign another location to which all future orders will be redirected.
- Side Determining the way of arrival of the vehicle to the location. For example, the "Right" option will

ensure that the vehicle will have a location on its right side upon arrival.

- Pairing precision Set the individual bubble radius for pairing with GPS positions
- Mail After entering the e-mail it is possible to send an e-mail about the next delivery to the delivery point upon request.
- Notification The mail with information about the delivery will be sent, if checked.
- Phone The phone number is displayed in the mobile application and allows the driver to communicate easily with the customer. SMS can be sent to this number.
- Notification The SMS with information about the delivery will be sent, if checked.
- Time window prolongation enabled If it is not enabled, then the customer does not have the time window prolongation is used. The default is always to enable prolongation.
- Active as delivery locations If the checkbox is not selected, it will not be applied to the location from "Delivery Location".

🕜 Add				×
Basic Advanced	d Time Windows	Delivery Days	Images	
Sunday	-	&	-	
Monday	-	&	-	
Tuesday	-	&)-[]	
Wednesday	-	&]-	
Thursday	-	&	-	
Friday	-	&	-	
Saturday	-	81	-	
	OK	Cancel		

Time Windows

• Sunday – Saturday – Here you can maintain different delivery windows for each day of the week.

🕕 Add				×
Basic Advanced	Time Windows	Delivery Days	Images	
Sunday				
Monday 🗸				
Tuesday				
Wednesday				
Thursday				
Friday				
Saturday				
	ОК	Cancel		

Delivery days

• Sunday – Saturday – Definition of permitted delivery days. If the days are defined and the order delivery day is on not permitted day, then order is marked with a yellow traffic light.

Basic	Advanced	Time Windows	Delivery Days	Images
Ad	d	Edit	Delete	
Image	Comment	t		
		No co	ontent in table	

Images

- Here you can add the image to the location if it was attached by driver from the web portal (instraction how to do it you can find in the manula section "portal for drivers – location photo")

2.2.3. Edit location

All data for all locations can be freely changed by pressing the "Edit" button.

* If the changed data for locations is transmitted via the interface from the master system, this data will always be overwritten by the values from the master system (exept types).

2.2.4. Delete location

Selected locations can be deleted by pressing the "Delete" button.

Add		Edit Delete Number:	645				
		Name					
•	1	Клиент 1	Київ, вул. Бере…	50.4284	30.6148		
			Васильків, вул			0003	5,500
•	100	Клиент 100	Бровари,6-р Н	50.5120	30.7950	00:03	O Confirmation X
	101	Клиент <mark>1</mark> 01	Погреби, вул	50.5537	30.6234	00:03	
	102	Клиент 102	Київ, вул. Анни	50.4083	30.6211	00:06	Are you sure to delete selected locations?
	103	Клиент 1 03	Київ, вул. Курч…	50.4783	30.6316	00:02	
	104	Клиент 104	Глибоке, вул <mark>. Г</mark>	50.2638	30.9514	00:03	
	105	Клиент 1 05	Київ, вул. Ентуз	50.4370	30.6029	00:06	
	106	Клиент 106	Київ, вул. Дніп	50.4079	30.6139	00:06	No Yes
	107	Клиент 107	Київ, вул. Дніп	50.3928	30.6147	00:06	2,500

Locations can be marked manually, select all (Ctrl + A), or select unused locations via the context menu.

•	No	Name	Address	Latitude
•	1	Клиент 1	Київ, вул. Бере…	50.4284
	10	Клиент 10		50.1806
•	100	Клиент 100	Check geocodes	50 5120
•	101	Клиент 101	Unused locations 🔸	40 days
•	102	Клиент 102	Columns	120 days
•	103	Клиент 103	Export	360 days

2.3. Orders

Orders – Orders are objects that we want to plan and create routes with a clearly defined order of stop. We can create orders manually, import from external systems, delete, edit, or divide. When depot is activated, the system will display available orders.

	Depots	Location	s O	rders 😑	Vehicles Planning Plan	s GPS	o Map					
	Add Edit Delete Import - Apply Number: 0/235 • Weight: 0/25,120 • Volume: 0/74 • Weight back: 0/2,562 • Volume back: 0/8											
•	No		Cml	Date	Name	City	Wght	Vol	WBack	VBack	Time window	Comment
•	23578			10/7/17	"торговый павильон ""Верас"" д		16	0.0	0	0	07:20-0 <mark>9:3</mark> 0	
•	23579			10/7/17	магазин №12 д.Бережное		26	0.1	0	0	09:00-13:00	
۲	23580			10/7/17	магазин М-715		19	0.1	0	0	00:00-05:50 22:35-24:00	
•	23581			10/7/17	"магазин ""Евроопт"" № 394 г.Со		0	0	96	0.3	06:00- <mark>09:3</mark> 0	
•	23582			10/7/17	"магазин ""Гуртовня"" г. Давид-Г		86	0.3	0	0	11:00-13:00	

All order data can be easily exported via the context menu. The context menu is displayed by right-clicking on any order.

Depots	Locations	Orders	Vehicles	Planning	Plan	ns GPS	O Ma
Add	Edit	Delete	nport 👻 A	pply Number: (0/235 • V	Weight: 0/25,120) • Volum
No		Cml Da	te Name			City	Wg
0 23578		10/7	/17 "торгов	ый пави <mark>льон ""Вер</mark> г	ас"" л. "		1
• 23579		10/7	/17 магазин	№12 д. Go to	+		2
• 23580		10/7	/17 магазин	M-715 Select			1
23581		10/7	/17 "магази	н ""Еврс Split			(
• 23582		10/7	/17 "магази	н ""Гурті Tools			8
• 23583		10/7	/17 магазин	№34 д. Notificatio	ns		15
23584		10/7	/17 "универ	сам ""Kc Columns			8
• 23585		10/7	/17 "павиль	он ""Kar Export	•	Clipboard	1
• 23586		10/7	/17 "павиль	он ""Егорка	_	CSV	6
• 23588		10/7	/17 "магази	н ""Матрешка"""		Eucol	2
• 23589		10/7	/17 "магази	н ""Гуртовня"""		excel	.2
• 23590		10/7	/17 столова	я		Rinkai Routing	CSV 8

You can also view additional columns in the table, reorder columns, and then permanently save the selected column layout.

Depots	Location	ns Ord	ders 😐	Vehicles (Planning	Plans	GPS	O Map	
Add	Edit	Delete	Import	• Apply	Number:	0/235 • Weigh	nt: 0/25,	120 • Volume: 0/7	74 • Wei
No	,	Cml	Date	Name		City		Wght	Vol
235	78		10/7/17	"торговый па	вильон ""Ве			16	0.0
235	79		10/7/17	магазин №12	д.Бережноє	Go to		26	0.1
235	80		10/7/17	магазин М-71	15	Select	•	19	0.1
235	81		10/7/17	" <mark>магазин</mark> ""Ев	роопт"" № 3	Split		0	0
235	82		10/7/17	"магазин ""Гу	ртовня"" г. Д	Tools		86	0.3
235	83		10/7/17	магазин №34	д. Рубель	Notifications	_	150	0.4
235	84		10/7/17	"универсам "	"Копилка"""	Columns	•	Color	
235	85		10/7/17	"павильон ""k	(алина"" д. N	Export	•	Delivery location	
235	86		10/7/17	"павильон ""В	горка"""			Comment	
235	88		10/7/17	"магазин ""Ма	атрешка"""			Comment 2	
235	89		10/7/17	"магазин ""Гу	ртовня"""			Mail	
235	90		10/7/17	столовая				No	
2359	91		10/7/17	"торговый па	вильон ""Куп	ец"""		Phone	
235	92		10/7/17	магазин №40				Street	
2359	93		10/7/17	магазин №52	ТПС д. Белоу	ша		Time at custome	
235	94	1	10/7/17	"магазин ""Кв	артал"" р.п. Р	ечица"		Time at custome	
2359	95		10/7/17	"магазин №8	"Продтовар	ы"" р.п		Time at depot	
235	96		10/7/17	"магазин №9	"Продтовар	ы"" р.п		Time at custome	r l
2359	97		10/7/17	"магазин №4	"Продукты"	'д. Рух		Time at depot ba	ack
235	98		10/7/17	"магазин №3	5 ""TПС"" д. С	тахово"	L	Save columns lay	/out

2.3.1. Adding an order

Press the* "Add"* button to add a new order. Fields marked in red must be filled in (the fields below are shown in bold).

Other fields can be entered, otherwise they will be filled in with the values from the respective location.

0 Add				\times
Basic Advanced				
Name			Edi	t
No	Date	2/15/	2022	
Vehicle type	. Comment			
Time window	& _		-	
ld Unit	Quantity			
	No content in table			
	OK Cancel			

Basic

- Name Determines the delivery location from the location list. After pressing the "Edit" button and entering a part of the location name or delivery address, the system will select all matching records. Click on a specific location to select it.
- No User order number. The field can also be blank.
- Date The system automatically assigns the order date to the next business day. This date can be freely changed from the calendar.
- Vehicle type The vehicle type is taken from the location, but can be manually adjusted. This change does not take place again at the selected location.
- Comment The order comment is displayed in the itinerary.
- Time window The time window is automatically taken from the selected location. It can be manually edited, but this adjustment will not be reflected in the overall window settings at the selected location.

DbA 🕕				×
Basic Advanced				
Vehicle			Edit	Delete
Time at customer				
Loading start	- [
Color	None	*		
	OK	Cancel		

Advanced

- Vehicle Specific vehicle can be assigned to order. No other vehicles can be used.
- Time at customer Administrative time at the customer.
- Start of loading You can set the loading time for each order. I.e. The vehicle must start loading at a defined interval. When filling in only the first window, this value is understood as the earliest possible loading time. If only the second window is filled, the value represents the latest possible loading time.
- Color You can choose the color of the order, which it will be displayed on the map during planning. Works as a visual cue for convenience.

2.3.2. Edit order

All parameters of the order can be adjusted at any time by pressing the **"Edit"** button.

• D	epots	Locations	•	Orders	Vehi	icles	Planni	ng	Plans	GPS
Ac	dd	Edit	Delete	Imp	iort 👻	Арр	ly Num	ber: 0/23	85 • Weig	ht: 0/25
	No		- second						123	
			Edit							×
•	23579		Basic A	dvanced						
•	23580		Name	"тор	говый па	вильон "	"Верас"" д.	Больш	Edit	
•	23581									
•	23582		No	2357	78	Date		10/7	7/2017	
•	23583		Vehicle ty	/pe		. Com	ment			
•	23584									
•	23585		Time wind	dow 07:20	0:00 -	09:30:0	0 <u>&</u>		-	
•	23586		ld	Unit		Quar	tity			
•	23588		V	V		0.04705	88235			
•	23589		VB	VB		0				
•	23590		w	w		16	5			
•	23591		WB	WB		0				
•	23592		5	Паллета		0				
•	23593		231132	Строки		0				
•	23594		34432	Ящик		0				
•	23595									
•	23596				0	ĸ	Cancel			
	23597			10/1/1		10103900	ни проду	KTDI APT	y Ann	

2.3.3. Delete order

Selected orders can be removed by pressing the "**Delete**" button. Orders can be manually marked or selected all (Ctrl + A).

•	Depots	Locatio	ns O	rders	😑 Vehi	cles 🛛 🔍	Planning	Plan	is GF	PS OM	ар			
	Add	Edit	Delete	Imp	ort 👻	Apply	Number: 0)/235 • V	Veight: 0/2	25,120 • Volur	ne: 0/	74 • Wei	ght back: (0/2,562 • '
•	No		Cml	Date	Na	me			City	W	ght	Vol	WBack	VBack
	23578			0/7/1	7 "тс	рговый пав	ильон ""Вера	ас"" д			16	0.0	0	0
•	23579			10/7/	7 ма	газин №12 ,	д.Бережное				26	0.1	0	0
•	23580			10/7/1	7 ма	газин M-71	5				19	0.1	0	0

2.3.4. Import of orders

By pressing the **"Import"** button you can to choose the method of importing new orders. When importing a csv file, you must specify its path. The web service imports immediately.

O D	epots	Location	ns Or	ders	Vehicle		
A	dd	Edit	Delete	Imp	oort 🔻	1	
•	No		Cml	CSV.		ie	
•	23578			Web	services	т	
•	23579			Exce		93	
•	23580			10/1/	17 1916		

Orders are then divided into two tables. At the top is a list of received orders for already known locations, at the bottom is orders for new or changed locations.

🕡 Imp	oort											×
Proces	sed Orders: 0/14	1										
•	Depot	No	Name	Address	Latitude	Longitude	AT@C	T@C	GWLim	Customer factor	No	
					No conte	nt in table						
					No conte							
Unpro	cessed Orders: 1	4/14										
	Depot	No	Name	Address	Latitude	Longitude	AT@C	T@C	GWLim	Customer factor	No	
•	RR100-M	L001	N1	Nagykanizsa			00:05		-		1	
•	RR100-M	L002	N2	Koroshegy			00:05				2	
•	RR100-M	L003	N3	Oroszlany			00:05	-			3	
•	RR100-M	L004	N4	Gyor, Erfurti u.4			00:05				4	
•	RR100-M	L005	N5	Elek, Hosok u. 1			00:05				5	
•	RR100-M	L006	N6	Rabapatona	**	**	00:05			**	6	
•	RR100-M	L007	N7	Debrecen , Fur	277		00:05				7	
•	RR100-M	L008	N8	Budakeszi			00:05				8	
•	RR100-M	L009	N9	Budapest , Pas			00:05				9	
•	RR100-M	L010	N10	Tatabanya ,			00:05				10	
•	RR100-M	L011	N11	Torokszentmikl			00:05				11	
•	RR100-M	L012	N12	Budapest, Told	1.77		00:05				12	
•	RR100-M	L013	N13	Csomor , Arp			00:05				13	
•	RR100-M	L014	N14	Budapest, XI M			00:05				14	
_												
Pro	cess Popul	late • Pro	cNew									

Unknown locations must first be geocoded by pressing the "**Populate**" -> "**Geocode**" button. The system will try to locate the customer's location on the map from the address provided. The accuracy of this estimate can be checked in the columns:

- Score Automatic evaluation of a request's match with a result. For values lower than 85, care should be taken to check automatically determine coordinates. The value 100 corresponds to the exact match of the entered address with the result.
- Distance The distance of the found point from the depot.
- Area It is the area of found object on the map. If it is greater than zero, we recommend checking the result.

2.3.5. Split order

Planning orders may be those that are larger than the largest available vehicle. It is therefore necessary to divide the order for its planning.

Through the context menu (right-click), select the **"Split"** option, there you will be able to easily enter the ratio of weight and size characteristics for separation.

Depots	Location	ns Or	ders 🔍 🔍	/ehicles Planning 	ng Plans
Add	Edit	Delete	Import	Apply Num	ber: 0/235 • Weight:
No		Cml	Date	Name	City
0 2357	78		10/7/17	"торговый павильон "	"Benac"" a
2357	79		10/7/17	магазин №12 д.Береж	Go to 🕨
2358	30		10/7/17	магазин М-715	Select +
0 2358	31		10/7/17	"магазин ""Евроопт"	Split
2358	32		10/7/17	"магазин ""Гуртовня""	Tools
2358	33		10/7/17	магазин №34 д. Рубел	Notifications
2358	34		10/7/17	"универсам ""Копилка	Columns 🕨
2358	35		10/7/17	"павильон ""Калина""	Export +
2358	36		10/7/17	"павильон ""Егорка"""	

Step by step instruction:

- 1. Select the unit where the order is divided.
- 2. Enter the appropriate value for the selected item in Column 2 and confirm by pressing key Enter.
- 3. If you want to split the other units in the same ratio, click on the selected unit and select "Recalculate" from the context menu.
- 4. After pressing the "OK" button, the system creates a new order with the original number + extension":
 1" and reduces the amount delivered in the original order.

ld	Unit	Quantity	1	2	-
٧	V	0.0470588235	0.0470588235	0,023	
W	W	16	16	0	
23	578	> 23578		& 23578:1	

.

ld	Unit	Quantity	1	2
٧	V	0.0470588235	0.0240588235	0.0 22
N	W	16	16	C Recalculate
			/	
23	578	> 23578	8	23578:1

! You need to be careful with this item and / or check with an IT specialist, because most often is seted up that the accounting system checks the numbers of previously unloaded orders by loading routes and a new number will be appeared by splitting orders.

2.3.6. Selecting orders for planning

After loading orders from the interface or manually creating them, you need to select orders for planning. There are two ways to select orders:

Manual selection

Individual orders can be specified for optimization using the checkbox in the second column. Or you can mark all orders by checking the box in the second column header.

	Depots	Locations	Orders	Vehicles	Planning	Plans	GPS	O Map					
	Add	Edit	Delete	port 🔹 Ap	ply Number: 2/2	35 • Weig	ht: 19/25,12	20 • Volume: 0	/74 • W	e <mark>ight b</mark> ack:	96/2,56	2 • Volume back: 0/8	
•	No		Cml Date	e Name		City	/	Wght	Vol	WBack	VBack	Time window	Cor
0	23578		10/7/	17 "торговы	ій павильон ""Верас"	" д		16	0.0	0	0	07:20-09:30	
•	23579		10/7/	17 магазин І	№12 д.Бережное			26	0.1	0	0	09:00-13:00	
•	23580		10/7/	17 магазин	M-715			19	0.1	0	0	00:00-05:50 22:35-24:00	
•	23581		10/7/	17 "магазин	""Евроопт"" № 394 г	r.Co		0	0	96	0.3	06:00-09:30	
•	23582		10/7/	17 "магазин	""Гуртовня"" г. Дави	д-Г		86	0.3	0	0	11:00-13:00	

Also, orders can be selected based on a number of rules through the **Filter**, which is available in the context menu of the "Tools" item.

	Depots	Locations	Orders	😐 Veh	icles 🛛 🔍 P	lanning	Plan	s GPS
	Add	Edit	Delete	mport 🔹	Apply	Number: 2	/235 • W	eight: 19/2
•	No		Cml Da	ate N	ame			City
•	23578		10/	7/17 "т	орговый павил	льон ""Вера	с ^{•••} д	
•	23579		10/	7/17 м	агазин №12 д.І	Бережное		
•	23580	\checkmark	10/	7/17 м	агазин <mark>М-715</mark>		Go to	•
•	23581	\checkmark	10/	7/17 "м	иагазин ""Евро	опт"" <mark>№</mark> 39	Select	•
•	23582		10/	7/17 "м	магазин ""Гурто	овня"" г. Да	Split	
•	23583		10/	7/17 м	агазин №34 д.	Рубель	Tools	
•	23584		10/	7/17 "y	/ниверсам ""Ко	пилка""	Notifica	tions
•	23585		10/	7/17 "r	авильон ""Кал	ина"" д. Ма	Column	s 🕨
•	23586		10/	7/17 "r	авильон ""Его	рка"""	Export	
	22500	0	10.0	7/47 0				

List of available filters:

- 1. by date of delivery (also in the format from to)
- 2. by the string contained in the title
- 3. according to order number

- 4. according to the weight, volume and third dimension
- 5. by vehicle type
- 6. by comment

After setting the required values in each field, the orders are activated / deactivated by pressing the **"Activate" / "Deactivate"** button.

1 Tools		×
Activity Cumulation Mismatched Time Windows		
Activate Deactivate		
Location	Order	
Name	Date -	
Comment	No	
Comment 2	Weight -	
Distance -	Volume -	
	Third -	
	CumQties 🗸	
	Time window -	
	Vehicle type	
	Comment	
	Close	

Once all the orders to optimize are marked, this selection must be confirmed by pressing the **"Apply"** button.

Depots	Location	ıs Or	ders 😑	Vehicles	;	Planning	Plans	G
Add	Edit	Delete	Import	-	Apply	Number: 2	/235 • Wei	g <mark>ht: 19</mark>
• No		Cml	Date	Name			Ci	ty
2357	8		10/7/17	"торго	вый паві	ильон ""Вера	с"д	
2357	9		10/7/17	магази	ин №12 д	Бережное	-	
2358	0		10/7/17	магази	ин <mark>M</mark> -715			
• 2358	1 🗸		10/7/17	"магаз	вин ""Евр	оопт"" № 394	4 r.Co	
• 2358	2		10/7/17	"магаз	вин ""Гурт	говня"" г. Да	вид-Г	

2.4. Vehicles

The "Vehicles" tab serves to maintain the list of vehicles to be optimized.

Depots	Locations	Orders	😑 Veh	icles	Planning	Plans	GPS	о Мар	
Add	Edit	Delete	nport 🔹	Number: 32	/32 • Weight: 4	14,100/ <mark>4</mark> 4,10	0 • Volume:	2,373/2,373	
No	Number plate	LdCap	Volume	e 🗌	Availability		Vehicl	e profile	Carrie
15	A 102 15	1,224	102.0		00:00-24:00		Deliv	ery car	

2.4.1. Add vehicles

You can add the vehicle by pressing the "**Add**" button. Required fields are highlighted red again. Vehicle parameters are divided into five tabs.

🕜 Add		×
Basic Dimer	nsions Time Costs Contacts	
Depot	Demo (Wialon)	
No		
Number plate		
Carrier		*
Driver		•
Co-driver		*
GPS provider		•
GPSId		
Active		
Availability	00:00:00 - 23:59:59 & -	
ES@AF		
Comment		
	OK Cancel	

Basic

- No Vehicle number.
- Number Plate Vehicle registration plate.
- Carrier The actual carrier to which the vehicle belongs.
- Driver The person who normally runs the vehicle.
- Co-driver forwarding agent.
- GPS Provider Set up a GPS Vehicle Tracking Service Provider.
- GPSId Vehicle identification number for GPS tracking.
- Active If the box is checked, the vehicle is available for scheduling. This field can be changed

directly on the list of vehicles.

- Avialability Time from/until the vehicle is available for delivery.
- Enforce start at Available from Enforced start of vehicle a time Available from.
- Comment Comment on the vehicle.

Add >						
Basic Dimensions Time	Costs Contacts					
Vehicle profile	Лековые					
Vehicle type	Edit					
Gross weight	0					
Load capacity	0					
Volume	0					
Third	0					
Weight utilization [%]	100					
Volume utilization [%]	100					
Third utilization [%]	100					
Maximum routes per vehicle						
Maximum stops per route						
Maximum km per vehicle						
Maximum km per route						
Preloaded						
	OK Cancel					

Dimensions

- Vehicle profile Setting of vehicle profile
- Vehicle type The field allows you to define different types of vehicles (vehicle with front, high vehicle, forklift, etc.).
- Gross weight Total weigh of a vehicle.
- Load capacity Maximum load capacity in kg.
- Volume Maximum vehicle volume in user defined units.
- Third The capacity of the vehicle can be defined even by a third dimension (e.g. ADR points, number of pallets.).
- · Weight utilization It is possible to allow vehicle overload or to force the system to create a reserve
on the car. The value 100 corresponds to 100% vehicle load. A value of 110 is an allowable overload of 10%, a value of 90 creates a reserve of 10% on the vehicle.

- Volume utilization Allowing the vehicle to exceed the volume capacity or create a capacity reserve.
- Third utilization Allowing the vehicle to exceed the third capacity or create a capacity reserve.
- Maximum routes per vehicle Maximum number of routes for a specific vehicle.
- Maximum stops per route The maximum number of stops per route for a specific vehicle.
- Maximum km per vehicle Maximum mileage for a specific vehicle.
- Maximum km per route maximum mileage per route for a specific vehicle.
- Pre-loaded If the box is checked, then the vehicle does not consume loading capacity on the first route.

🚺 Add	×
Basic Dimensions Tim	e Costs Contacts
Usage time limited	
Usage time limit	12:00:00
Usage break	
Period	06:00:00
Duration	00:30:00
Driving time limited	
Driving time limit	09:00:00
Driving break	
Period	04:30:00
Duration	00:30:00
Speed factor [%]	100
Depot factor [%]	100
Customer factor [%]	100
Maximum route duration	
Time at depot	
	OK Cancel

Time

• Usage time limited – If the box is checked, the vehicle's daily usage time is limited to the value of the "Usage time limit" field.

- Usage time limit Maximum usage time of vehicle including driving, loading and unloading.
- Usage break Break will be hold after given time.
- Period Is the time after which a break is to be made.
- Duration Length of break time.
- Driving time limited If the box is checked, driving time is limited to a value from the "Driving time" field.
- Driving time limit Maximal allowed driving time for the vehicle.
- Driving break If the box is checked, after a certain driving time ("Break period" field), a given break of length from the "Break interval" field is required.
- Period Driving time, after which it is necessary to take a break of length from the field "Break time".
- Duration Minimum break time after the defined driving time is exceeded from the "Period" field.
- Speed factor The speed of a specific vehicle can be reduced or increased by this factor.
- Depot factor Coefficient for the loading speed in a depot for a particular vehicle.
- Customer factor A factor that adjusts the unloading speed at customer for a specific vehicle.
- Maximum route duration The maximal duration of one route. Suitable for perishable goods.
- Time at depot Fixed time of loading in the depot. If this parameter is set, the loading time is not calculated from the loaded amount of goods, but it is equal this value

DbA		×
Basic Dimensions T	ime Costs Contacts	
Fixed costs	0	
Costs per km	1	
Costs per hour	0	
Costs per stop	0	
Costs per weight	0	
Costs per volume	0	
Costs per third	0	
Costs per weight back	0	
Costs per volume back	0	
Costs per third back	0	
	OK Cancel	

Costs

- Fixed costs A fixed amount corresponding to the cost of using the vehicle regardless of the work performance.
- Cost per km Mileage
- Cost per hour Cost per hour of vehicle operation.
- Cost of the stop Cost per stop.
- Coast per weight
- · Coast per volume
- · Coast per other
- Coast per weight back
- Coast per volume back
- · Coast per third back

Contacts

- Mail Email address.
- Phone Phone number.

2.4.2. Edit vehicle

All vehicle data can be freely changed by pressing the "Edit" button.

Depots	Locations	Orders	Vehicles	s 🔍 🔍 Plannii
Add	Edit	Delete	nport 👻 Nur	nber: 2/28 • Weig
No	Number plate	LdCap	Volume	Third
AI 6169 MX	AI 6169 MX	0	0	0
KA9538BM	KA9538BM	300	0	0

In the event that the changed data on vehicles is transmitted by the interface from the user system, these data **WILL ALWAYS BE OVERRIDDEN** by values from the user system.

2.4.3. Delete the vehicle

Vehicles can be deleted either individually or in bulk by pressing the "Delete" button.

Depots	Locations	• Order	s 💿 Vehicle	s 💿 Pla	nning	Plans	GPS	O Map
Add	Edit	Delete	Import 👻 Nur	mber: 2/28 • V	Veight: 30	0/87,400 • \	/olume: 0//	208 • Third: 0/8
No	Number plate	LdCap	Volume	Third		Availabilit	ty	Vel
AI 6169 MX	AI 6169 MX	0	0	0		00:00-24:	00	
KA9538BM	KA9538BM	300	0	0		00:00-24:	00	

The group of multiple deletion vehicles can be selected similarly to the lines in Excel (Shift + Arrow, Ctrl + Mouse Click, etc.).

2.4.4. Import of vehicles

By pressing the "Import" button you have to choose the method of importing new vehicles.

Depots	Locations	Orde	ers	Vehicl	es 🔍 🔍 Planning
Add	Edit	Delete	Import	- M	umber: 2/28 • Weight
No	Number plate	LdCa	CSV		Third
AI 6169 MX	AI 6169 MX	0	Web serv	ices	0 (
KA9538BM	KA9538BM	300		0	0

When importing a csv file, you must specify its path. The web service imports immediately.

2.4.5. Activation of vehicles

The list of vehicles available for scheduling can be updated by checking the "Active" box.

Depots	Locations	Orders	Vehicles	s 🛛 🔍 Plan	ning	Plans GPS	● Мар	
Add	Edit De	lete	nport 👻 Num	nber: 2/28 • W	eight: 7,4	400/87,400 • Volume: 18	8/208 • Third: 74,000/871,0	00
No	Number plate	LdCap	Volume	Third		Availability	Vehicle type	Vehic
AI 6169 MX	AI 6169 MX	0	0	0	U	00:00-24:00		Лe
KA9538BM	KA9538BM	300	0	0		00:00-24:00		Лe
K00000271	AB 01 57 BT Hu	3,100	8.0	31,000		02:25-19:40	100000000	Лe
K00000163	AB 01 58 BK Hu	3,100	8.0	31,000		02:20-17:30	1000000	Лe
K00000115	AB 19 12 BK Hu	4,300	10.0	43,000		02:20-15:00	100	Лe
chN000038	AB 28 13 BO H	3,100	8.0	31,000		02:15-19:30		Лe
K00000030	AB 28 16 BO H	3,100	8.0	31,000		02:45-14:30	10000000000000	Ле
cbN000036	AB 28 23 BO H	3 100	8.0	31,000		02:30-16:21		Ле

If multiple vehicles are selected (Shift + Arrow, Ctrl + Mouse Click, etc. These vehicles can be activated or deactivated by checking the box in the column header. Vehicles can also be activated on the basis of a saved plan via the context menu

2.4.6. Profile of the vehicle

	Vehicles profiles
۲	Carriers
٠	Drivers
	GPS providers vehicles

Several vehicle profiles can be defined (van, truck, truck with restrictions, etc.). Every vehicle must be assigned to some profile. Is recommended to use one profile for multiple vehicles with the similar parameters. From the entered profiles, a distance matrix is calculated, which contains information about the distances and travel times between locations.

Add	Edit	Delete			
Name	SF	Profile	RP	TRA	MW
Лековые	100	Car	80	0	2,500

You can create a new profile by pressing the "Add" button.

Add

×

Depot \leftarrow \downarrow \uparrow + \rightarrow Name 100 Speed factor [%] Profile Car Routes preference [short/fast] Toll roads avoidance [never/always] Max weight [kg] Max height [cm] Max width [cm] Max length [cm] No Name City Клиент 1 Київ, вул. Бере... 1 $oldsymbol{eta}$ 10 Клиент 10 Васильків, вул. .. 100 Клиент 100 Бровари, б-р Н... 101 Клиент 101 Погреби, вул. ... 102 Клиент 102 Київ, вул. Анни... 103 Клиент 103 Київ, вул. Курч... Офисное 104 Клиент 104 Глибоке, вул. Г... 🔲 здание «Маха Р 105 Клиент 105 Київ, вул. Ентуз.. Украина 106 Клиент 106 Київ, вул. Дніп... P 107 Клиент 107 Київ, вул. Дніп... отехнічна вулиця 108 Клиент 108 Київ, просп. Во.. 109 Клиент 109 Бровари, вул. ... 11 Клиент 11 Васильків, вул. 110 Клиент 110 Зазімье, вул. О... 111 Клиент 111 Проліски, вул. .. 112 Клиент 112 Racunskin BVA 50 m @ OpenStreetMap contributors Cancel

Parameters:

- Name Profile name. This name is then assigned to individual vehicles.
- Speed factor Maps includes predefined speeds for seven road types. You can make roads faster or slower by this parameter.
- Profile You can choose from two basic profiles "Car" / "Truck".
- Route preference [short/fast] You can set system preferences for fast or short routes using the bar.
 Zero corresponds to short routes, hundred value is fast. The costeffective route is roughly reached for 80. The settings can then be checked for any location.
- Toll roads avoidance [never/always] You can regulate the use of paid roads (0 never use paid roads, 100 – never avoid paid roads)
- Max weight [kg] Setthe total vehicle weight in kilograms. Routes will be run on roads with permissible passage of vehicles with maximum total weight.
- Max height [cm] Height adjustment in centimetres. Routes will be run on roads with authorized passage of vehicles at the maximum entered height.
- Max width [cm] Adjusts the width of the vehicle in centimetres. Routes will be run on roads with authorized passage of vehicles with the maximum width specified.
- Max length [cm] Setting the vehicle length in centimetres. The routes will be run on roads with authorized passage of vehicles with a maximum length.

Profile settings can be verified on the route from the depot to any location (or from location to the depot).

Select a location from the list and press the **"View"** button to display the route from the depot to the selected location (or from location to the depot).

Using the context menu on the map, you can display individual prohibition signs ("Show restrictions"), including their technical description. The description appears as a tooltip above the specific restriction. It is also possible to display actual speeds on the map ("Show actual speeds"). The speed limit and the actual speed are only displayed when the map is zoomed in closer.

Also you could see the route on the different web map.

6 Edit					
epot				HI-	- ALL
lame		Лековые			ароварський район
peed factor [6]	100	STANKES EN	T-10-08	A second second
rofile		Car		2008	0
	n an [ala ant/fact]			Пандшафтний)	
loutes preiere	nce (short/last)			місцевого Вигурівщи Троєнни	ина-
oll roads avoi	dance [never/always]	0	Оболонь	«Муромець- Лопуховате»	
<mark>/lax weight</mark> [k	a]	2500			
Aax height [cr	n]	2		десенка	
Aax width [cm	1	2		TO TOTAL	·
lav length for	al		Тетрівка	S AND ALL	
nux rengan [cr		-		воскресенка	
No	Name	City		Русанівські	Биків
1	Клиент 1	Київ, вул. Бе	ре		Лісовии масив-
10	Клиент 10	Васильків, ву	ул	острів	
100	Клиент 100	Бровари,б-р	H	A MARINE	
101	Клиент 101	Погреби, вул	л	Лівобережний	
102	Клиент 102	Київ, вул. Ан	ни	Масив	
103	Клиент 103	Київ, вул. Ку	рч		Социнто
104	Клиент 104	Глибоке, вул	п. Г	Гідропарк Русанівка	
105	Клиент 105	Київ, вул. Ент	пуз а Печ	ерськ	Rannung .
106	Клиент 106	Київ, вул. Дн	ніп Нова Забудова	Березняки	И
107	Клиент 107	Київ, вул. Дн	ніп ка	Дарницький	
	100	Visit and	Bo	автомобільно- Видубичі залізничний	
108	Клиент 108	кив, просп.			
108	Клиент 108 Клиент 109	Бровари, вул	л	MICT	Азняки масив
108 109 11	Клиент 108 Клиент 109 Клиент 11	кив, просп. Бровари, вул Васильків, ву	л ул и Лемијска	MICT	Харківський масив
108 109 11 110	Клиент 108 Клиент 109 Клиент 11 Клиент 110	кина, прост. Бровари, вул Васильків, ву Зазімье, вул.	ул ул . О	MICT	Орtions Show
108 109 11 110 111	Клиент 108 Клиент 109 Клиент 11 Клиент 110 Клиент 111	кив, просп. Бровари, вул Васильків, ву Зазімье, вул. Проліски, вул	ил ул . О л	міст	Options Show

• Each profile <u>can be changed freely</u>. Each time you save the change, the saved distances and the travel times for the changed profile are deleted.

Thus, the distance matrix for this profile will be recalculated during planning.

• Profiles <u>can be deleted</u> by pressing the "**Delete**" button below the list of available profiles. However, the profile can only be removed if no existing vehicle is referenced.

2.4.7. Carriers

A carrier can be assigned to each vehicle. The list of carriers is maintained in the "**Carriers**" section. Here you can create, edit or delete carriers.

A carrier can only be deleted if it has no driver and vehicle assigned.

arriers			
Add	Edit	Delete	
No	Name	Mail	Phone
1	Свой транспорт		
2	Перевозчик		

The following data can be maintained with the carrier:

- No The carrier's identification number. It is used mainly for data transfer between Rinkai and ERP of the customer.
- Name Carrier name.
- Mail Email contact to the carrier
- Phone Telephone contact of the carrier.

🕜 Add		×
Depot		
No		
Name		
Mail		
Phone		
Ok	Cancel	

2.4.8. Drivers

Each vehicle can be assigned a driver. The list of drivers is kept in the "Drivers" section.

Here you can create, edit or delete drivers. Drivers can only be deleted if they are not assigned to any vehicle.

Add	Edit	Delete		
Carrier	No	Name	Mail	Pho
Свой транспорт	1	Иванов Иван		
Свой транспорт	1555	Беленко Русл	ан	098
Перевозчик	2	Петров Петр		097
Перевозчик	3	Иванов Иван		
Перевозчик	4	Ширяев Алек	c	095

The following data can be maintained with the driver:

- No The driver's identification number. It is used mainly for data transfer between Rinkai and ERP of the customer.
- Name
- Surname
- Mail Email contact to the driver
- Phone Telephone contact of the driver.

🕜 Add	×
Depot	Demo Ки 👻
Carrier	-
No	
Name	
Surname	
Mail	
Phone	
OK	Cancel

2.4.9. GPS providers vehicles

If the vehicle is equipped with a GPS unit, the vehicle can be paired with the unit. A list of all available units with their identifiers can be found in the folder **Vehicle GPS Providers**.

The list is retrieved by pressing the "**Load**" button. Pair the unit with the vehicle simply by drag-and-drop (grab the line with the GPS unit and drag it to the desired vehicle).

Load .	-		
GPS provider	Number plate	GPSId	
Wialon	AB 8343 BE	17072972	
Wialon	14 AB8347BE is	16342331	
Wialon	01 AB8047BO is	16332550	
Wialon	AB 1086 CO	16313906	
Wialon	06 AB3882BO h	16343934	
Wialon	09 AB3887BO h	15770552	

2.5. Planning

Before the planning starts, the following steps should be taken to plan:

- 1. Select available vehicles and, if necessary, adjust their parameters.
- 2. Activate relevant orders

Validity

Depending on the colour of the traffic light, any problems or breaking of some restrictions can be easily identified. For each traffic light, with a colour other than green, a tool tiú can be displayed with the list of reason for the warning. A violation problem may arise with routes, stops, vehicles and loading capacity.



2.5.1. Information panel

The top of the screen contains a summary of all the most important plan indicators and includes icons to change planning parameters, search, etc.

кт ∙ 2,630 , ≾	^{Time} 166:59 🔇	Costs 30,5	s 574 S	Vehicles 🕶 13 🔀	Unplan 0 🙎	nned St 👻	Outside window 👻 75 🛕	Delivery date 2/16/2022	Paramet	О Search	€ Undo) Redo	History
Depots	Locations	Orders	Vehicles	Planning	Plans	GPS (• Мар						

- Km Total number of planned kilometres. / Km toll Total number of toll kilometres.
- Time Total planned time.
- Costs Planned costs.
- Vehicles The number of used vehicles. / Routes The number of routes.
- Unplanned stops The number of unplanned stops. / Stops The number of all stops
- Outside window The number of stops outside of time windows. / After window The number of stops delivered after time windows.
- Delivery date Planned delivery date. Can be changed.
- Parameters Allows you to set basic planning parameters.
- Search Search for stops.
- Undo, Redo Use the arrows to go back to previous plans and back again.
- History Allows you to view the entire history.

2.5.2. Parameters

The automatically created plan always follows the set constraints and assumptions.

Some of these assumptions can be easily changed in the cockpit by pressing the "Equalizer" button.

Darameters		,
• Falameters		
Basic Advanced Tir	ne	
Speed factor [%]	90	
Depot factor [%]	100	
Customer factor [%]	70	
Weight utilization [%]	100	
Volume utilization [%]	100	
Third utilization [%]	100	
Search depth	2	

Basic

- Speed factor Acceleration (> 100) or deceleration (<100) of the road network, i.e. shortening or extending the driving time. Applies to all used vehicles.
- Depot factor Accelerate or slow down the loading of vehicles in the depot.
- Customer Factor Accelerate or slow down unloading time for all vehicles. It does not apply to the customer's administrative time
- Weight utilization Allow vehicle overload (> 100) or create reserve (<100).
- Volume utilization Allow vehicle overload (> 100) or create reserve (<100).
- Third utilization – Allow capacity to be exceeded in the third dimension.
- Search depth Adjusts the depth of the scan.

Parameters	×
Basic Advanced Time	
Maximum routes per vehic	le 3
Maximum stops per route	100
Maximum km per vehicle	
Maximum km per route	
Maximum route duration	
Include first leg	
Include last leg	
Check depot capacity	\checkmark
Routes without violations	
	OK Cancel

Advanced

- Maximum routes per vehicle Maximum allowed number of routes for all vehicles.
- Maximum stops per route Maximum number of stops per route.
- Maximum km per vehicle maximum mileage for the vehicle.
- Maximum km per route maximum mileage for the route
- Maximum route duration The longest possible route duration (time).
- Include first leg Include first section (depot -> first stop) to the duration of the route.
- Include last leg Include the last section (last stop -> depot) to the duration of the route.
- Check depot capacity Set whether the depot capacity should be checked.
- Routes without violations System will respect all maps violations and restrictions during routes optimization.

Basic Advanced Time	
Time window from prolongation	00:00:00
Time window to prolongation	00:00:00
Departure time after time window all	owed 🗸
Depot opening time	06:30:00
Depot closing time	23:59:00
Admin time upon departure	00:00:00
Admin time upon arrival	00:00:00

Time

- Time window from prolongation Extends the start of all time windows by the specified value.
- Time window to prolongation Extends the end of all time windows by the specified value.
- Departure time after time window allowed Departure after the time window. The value "Yes" allows you to arrive at a customer in a time window, but the unloading may end after a time window.
- Depot opening time The first time you can start the route.
- Depot closing time The time of the latest end of the route.
- Admin time upon departure This parameter allows you to set the fixed time that each vehicle spends before starting the route in the depot.
- Admin time upon arrival This parameter allows you to set the fixed time that each vehicle spends at the end of the route in the depot.

2.5.3. Automatic optimization

Automatic optimization of all orders is started by pressing the **"Optim"** button at the top of the "Routes" table.

Then you can set different optimization methods and their parameters.



Basic

Optimization starts immediately. The search depth can be set in the parameters. Just remember, that the deeper search means better the result, but longer computing time.

Advanced

Some parameters can be set before starting the optimization

Algorithm	RinkaiOpt	-
Method	All methods	*
Search depth	2	*
Prefer costs		
Close stops		
Optimize km		
Waiting times		

Method

- All methods All three optimization methods will be used.
- Methods CL, IW, C You can choose a specific optimization method. The methods differ in the duration of the calculation (CL is the fastest method).

Search depth – Setting of search depth.

Prefer costs – If the box is not checked, the system returns a solution with as lowest number of unplanned orders. Otherwise, it returns the solution with lowest cost.

Close stops – The system attempts to place all nearby stops within a 50-meter radius on one route.

Optimize km – The system minimizes only mileage regardless of time.

Waiting time – You can set the maximum allowed wait time on one route.

When the calculation is done, the system displays the cheapest solution. Use the "**Variants**" option from context menu to see other solutions found that are more expensive, but may contain fewer unplanned orders. Pressing the "**Apply**" button will display the selected alternative plan.

Km toll 👻	^{Time} 166:59 🕚	Costs 30,574 🕥	Vehicles + 13 🔀	Unplanned S	it 🝷	After wind	low -	Deliver 2/16	y date /2022	R	Parame		, О iearch			∂ Redo) History							⊡ Logout
Depots	Locations On	ders • Vehicles		Plans Gl		Map																		
$\rightarrow \leftarrow \downarrow$	↑+		Routes	Add	E	dit [elete 👻	Vie	w	Optim	•	Analysis	Exp	ort 👻							Add	Appl	у	DelAll
			Rt 🔍 Ve	hicle	Tr Sto	ps Start	End	Wait	Usg	Driv	Km	WUtil	VUtil	TUtil	Wgh	we tempo	prary plan	Back VBack TBack GWLim	VehT		US	Km V	ehicles/	Costs
			1 • AB	19 12 BK Hu	1 3	2 06:30	20:26	02:17	13:56	03:24	86	91%	63%	1%	4,40	ops opur	nization	0 01 00 5500	0	•	0	2,630	13	30,574
	80		2 🗢 AB	38 86 BO H	1 3	7 06:55	19:57	00:00	13:02	05:38	162	96%	71%	1%	3, 5	puons		✓ Map	0	1				
	1		3 🗢 AB	46 14 CO M	1 3	0 06:51	20:26	00:00	13:35	06:43	308	54%	31%	0%	1,351	2.2	80	 Depot capacity utilization 	0					
		Ð	4 🔶 AB	46 17 CO M	1 4	8 07:12	21:58	00:00	14:46	05:53	204	99%	52%	1%	2,470	3.6	133	Two panels	0					
		3	5 🗢 AB	46 23 CO M	1 2	6 07:07	18:35	00:00	11:28	07:09	344	35%	19%	0%	866	1.3	49	Unplanned stops 🕨	0					
	11/		6 🗕 AB	47 09 CO M	1 3	5 07:13	21:39	00:00	14:27	07:10	331	45%	28%	0%	1,125	1.9	44	✓ Variants	0					
	V.		7 🗢 AB	47 14 CO M	1 3	7 08:30	18:29	00:00	09:59	02:06	45	82%	44%	1%	2,044	3.1	113	1 Save options	0					

When creating different plans, you can save individual steps and then return to them later. You only need to select the "**Variants**" **option** via the context menu above the route header. Pressing the "**Add**" button adds a row to the list with the number of orders, the total mileage and the total cost. Each saved schedule can be restored by pressing the "**Apply**" button. The "**DelAll**" button is used to clear the list of plan positions.

2.5.4. Manual route creation

The routes can be created manually.

The first step is to create a new route, select a suitable vehicle, set the start of the route by pressing the "**Add**" button. You can either edit existing routes by pressing the "**Edit**" button or delete them using the "**Delete**" button. You can also delete multiple routes at a time.

Planr	ning		Plans (GPS	• M	lap									
R	out	es	Add		Edit	D	elete 🔻	Vie	ew	Optim	-	Analysis	Exp	ort 👻	
Rt	•	Veh	icle	Tr	Stops	Start	End	Wait	Usg	Driv	Km	WUtil	VUtil	TUtil	Wght
1	۲	AB	19 12 BK Hu	1	32	06:30	20:26	02:17	13:56	03:24	86	91%	63%	1%	4,207
CONTRACTOR					1022										

After hitting button **"Add"**, simply select the vehicle from the list and enter the required start in the "Start time" field. You can also assign any number to the route. If you want to allow automatic route planning to change your route, then unlock the route by unchecking the <u>"Locked" field</u>.

3,100 8 31 3,300 8 31,	000 0
3,300 8 31,	
	,000 0
4,600 10 43,	,000 0
3,100 8 31	,000 0
3,100 8 31	,000 0
3,300 8 31,	,000 0
3,100 8 31	,000 0
2,500 7 25	,000 0
2,500 7 25,	,000 0
2,500 7 25,	,000 0
2,500 7 25,	,000 0
2,500 7 25	,000 0
2,500 7 25,	,000 0
2,500 7 25	,000 0
2,500 7 25,	,000 0
3 100 8 31	000 0
00 00 00	00 2,500 7 25,00 00 2,500 7 25,00 00 3,100 8 31

Then, you can add individual orders from the "Unplanned Stops" table by drag & drop.

Orders can be added either individually or through a multiple selection. Another option is to mark orders in the map.

$\rightarrow \leftarrow \downarrow \uparrow + -$	Routes Add	Edit	Delete	• View	Opt	im 💌	Analys	is E	xport	-									
	Rt 🔍 Vehicle	Tr Stops	Start Er	d Wait l	lsg D	riv K	(m WUt	il VUti	I TUI	il Wg	ht Vol	Third	WBack \	Back	TBack G	VLim V	ehT		
QQ	1 AB 01 57 BT Hu.	. 1 0	06:30 06:	30 00:00 0	0:00 00	00	0 0%	0%	0%	6 () 0	0	0	0	0				
80																			
©° 6																			
	Stops Edit •	Delete	Reverse	Recalc]•[o _F	tim 👻	From	То											
	Rt Stop Name			City	Km	Wait	Usg	Driv	Arriv	Dep	Time windo	w	Wght	Vol	Third	WBack	VBack	TBack	GWLin
	1 LDtest				0	00:00	00:00	00:00	06:30	06:30	06:30-23:59		0	0	0	0	0	0	
	1 OLDtest				0	00:00	00:00	00:00	06:30	06:30	06:30-23:59		0	0	0	0	0	0	
	Unplanned Stop	s • 105/48	3 • Weight	: 3,788/26,0	7 0 • V a	lume:	6.1/41.2	2 • Thir	d: 208	8/1,68	5 • Weig	ht back	115/71	5 • Vo	lume b	ack: 0.2	2/1.3 •	Third b	ack:
ehicle Utilizations	OrdNo D	ocNo Na	me		Da	ite	Tim	e window		Wght	Vol	Third WBa	ck VBack	TBac	GWLim	VehT	Commen		
Vahida IdCan Vol Third	<o>chkk00005 8</o>	1273 Xo	рошун Г.Ю.		1/6/22	1/6/22	09:00-16:0	0		12	0.0	0 1	0.0	1	5,500	0	04-3 (51		-
AD OT 57 DT UN D 100 DO D1 000	<0>chkk00005 10	02565 Ye	рняк I.А.															Відділ…	
					1/6/22,		09:00-16:0											Відділ Відділ	
AB 01 52 BY Hu. 2,200 8.0 21,000	Ldk00000444 1	10572 Ma	акаренко А.В. **	"Coffee Boss""	1/6/22,		09:00-16:0 08:00-10:0								5,500 5,500		04-3 (51 04-4 (51	Відділ Відділ Відділ	
AB 01 58 BK Hu 3,000 8.0 31,000	Ldk00000444 1 Ldk00000538 8	10572 Ma 2699 Ko	акаренко А.В. "" лот О.В. КВ Стрі	"Coffee Boss"" ожень (Хорека)	1/6/22, 1/6 1/6		09:00-16:0 08:00-10:0 10:00-18:0								5,500 5,500 5,500		04-3 (51 04-4 (51 04-4 (51	Відділ Відділ Відділ Відділ	
AB 01 57 61 HG. 3,100 8,0 31,000 AB 01 58 KHu 3,300 8,0 31,000 AB 19 12 BK Hu 4,600 10,0 43,000 AB 29 16 F0,0 2100 8,0 21,000	Ldk00000444 11 Ldk00000538 8 Ldk00000458 8	10572 Ма 2699 Ко 1186 Ал	экаренко А.В. ** лот О.В. КВ Стрі ьянс маркет Тэ("Coffee Boss"" ожень (Хорека) ОВ (Общий)	1/6/22, 1/6 1/6 1/6		09:00-16:0 08:00-10:0 10:00-18:0 08:00-16:0								5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500		ОЧ-3 (51 ОЧ-4 (51 ОЧ-4 (51 Заказ в	Відділ Відділ Відділ Відділ С соз	
AB 01 57 01 HU. 3,100 8.0 31,000 AB 01 58 BK Hu. 3,300 8.0 31,000 AB 19 12 BK HU. 4,600 10,0 43,000 AB 28 16 BO H. 3,100 8.0 31,000 AB 29 32 BO H. 2,100 8.0 21,000	Ldk00000444 1 Ldk00000538 8 Ldk00000458 8 <o>chkk00004 10</o>	10572 Ма 2699 Ко 1186 Ал 06978 Ко	акаренко А.В. ** лот О.В. КВ Стр ьянс маркет Тэ(т М.П.	"Coffee Boss""" ожень (Хорека) DB (Общий)	1/6/22, 1/6 1/6 1/6 1/6/22,		09:00-16:0 08:00-10:0 10:00-18:0 08:00-16:0 09:00-17:0								5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500		ОЧ-3 (51 ОЧ-4 (51 ОЧ-4 (51 Заказ в ОЧ-5 (51	Відділ Відділ Відділ Відділ С соз Відділ	
AB 01 5 78 HALL 3,100 A0 31,000 AB 01 58 BK HALL 4300 6.0 31,000 AB 20 58 BK HALL 4600 100 43,000 AB 28 16 BO H.L 3,100 8.0 31,000 AB 28 25 BO H.L 3,100 8.0 31,000	Ldk00000444 1 Ldk00000538 8 Ldk00000458 9 <o>chkk00004 10 <o>Ldk000001 8</o></o>	10572 Ма 2699 Ко 1186 Ал 06978 Ко 1481 ТО	экаренко А.В. ** лот О.В. КВ Стрі ьянс маркет Тэ(т М.П. іРНАДО-РЕ ТОВ	"Coffee Boss"" ижень (Хорека) DB (Общий)	1/6/22, 1/6 1/6 1/6 1/6/22, 1/6/22,		09:00-16:0 08:00-10:0 10:00-18:0 08:00-16:0 09:00-17:0 08:00-19:0								5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500		ОЧ-3 (51 ОЧ-4 (51 ОЧ-4 (51 Заказ в ОЧ-5 (51 ОЧ-5 (51	Відділ Відділ Відділ Відділ С соз Відділ Відділ	
AB 01 58 8K Hu 3,00 80 31,000 AB 01 58 8K Hu 3,000 80 31,000 AB 28 16 80 H 3,100 8.0 31,000 AB 28 28 38 0 H 3,100 8.0 31,000 AB 28 28 38 0 H 3,100 8.0 31,000 AB 38 86 0 H 3,200 8.0 31,000	Ldk0000444 1 Ldk0000538 8 Ldk0000458 8 <>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>	10572 Ма 2699 Ко 1186 Ал 06978 Ко 1481 ТО 1319 По	акаренко А.В. "" лот О.В. КВ Стрі ьянс маркет Тэї т М.П. іРНАДО-РЕ ТОВ ізняк І.М.	"Coffee Boss"" ижень (Хорека) DB (Общий)	1/6/22, 1/6 1/6 1/6 1/6/22, 1/6/22, 1/6/22,		09:00-16:0 08:00-10:0 10:00-18:0 08:00-16:0 09:00-17:0 08:00-19:0 09:00-13:0								5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500		O4-3 (51 O4-4 (51 O4-4 (51 3aka3 e O4-5 (51 O4-5 (51 O4-5 (51	Відділ Відділ Відділ Відділ С соз Відділ Відділ Відділ	
AB 0158 EK Hu 3,000 80,000 AB 0158 EK Hu 3,000 80,000 AB 1912 EK Hu 4,600 10,00 AB 28 16 BO H 3,100 80,0 31,000 AB 28 23 BO H 3,100 80,0 31,000 AB 38 66 BO H 3,000 80,0 31,000	Ldk00000444 1 Ldk00000458 8 Ldk00000458 8 <c>chkk00004 16 C>chkk00001 8 Ldk00000523 8 CO>Ldk0000052 8</c>	10572 Ма 2699 Ко 1186 Ал 06978 Ко 1481 ТО 1319 По 1322 <u>Св</u>	акаренко А.В. ** лот О.В. КВ Стрі ьянс маркет Тэб т М.П. іРНАДО-РЕ ТОВ ізняк І.М. ириденко В <u>.К.</u>	""Coffee Boss""" ижень (Хорека) DB (Общий)	1/6/22, 1/6 1/6 1/6 1/6/22, 1/6/22, 1/6 1/6/22,		09:00-16:0 08:00-10:0 10:00-18:0 08:00-16:0 09:00-17:0 08:00-19:0 09:00-13:0 09:00-16:0					0 2 2 0 1 0 14 0 0 2 0 5 1 0 1 4			5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500		O4-3 (51 O4-4 (51 3aka3 8 O4-5 (51 O4-5 (51 O4-5 (51 O4-5 (51	Відділ Відділ Відділ Відділ С соз Відділ Відділ Відділ	

Use the context menu above the map to create a polygon. The polygon can then be freely edited to select the desired orders from the map. The next vertex of the polygon is created by clicking on the polygon's edge while holding down the "Ctrl" key. The vertex of the polygon can be deleted via the context menu above the desired vertex. Marked orders are automatically selected in the "Unplanned stops" table. From the table you can easily transfer orders to any route. Remove the polygon by clicking anywhere on the map.



The sequence of stops on the route can be changed again. To switch an order from a route to a route, use the view with two route display tables. To switch between these views, use the context menu above the

route table header.

Rou	utes	s	Add		Edit	De	lete 🔻	View	N	Optim	•	Analysis	s	Expo	rt 🔻	>		-							
Rt	• v	/ehicle		Tr	Stops	Start	End	Wait	Usg	Driv	Km	WUti	i vu	Rt	•	Vehicle	Save temporary plan	Start	End	Wait	Usg	Driv	Km	WU	Jtil
1	e A	AB 01 5	7 BT Hu	1	6	06:30	13:16	00:00	06:46	05:51	284	7%	49	1	٠	AB 01 5	7 Stops optimization	Þ 06:30	13:16	00:00	06:46	05:51	284	4 7	%
2	• A	AB 01 5	8 BK Hu	1	12	06:30	12:24	00:00	05:54	03:44	140	39%	22	2		AB 01 5	8 Options	🕨 🗸 Ma	р			03:44	140) 39	9%
																1		✓ De	pot capac	ity utilizat	tion	/		1	
																		✓ Tw	o panels						
			_		_	_	_											√ Tw Un	o panels planned s	tops] ,				
Sto	DS		dit 👻		Delete	Reve	erse	Recalc	.	Optim	•	From	To					✓ Tw Un ✓ Var	o panels planned s iants	tops] ,				
Sto	ps	Stop	dit -		Delete	Reve	erse	Recalc	• •	Optim n W	▼ F	From	To	Rt	-	Stop	Name	✓ Tw Un ✓ Var Sav	o panels planned s iants re options	stops]	ím V	Vait	Usq	Dr
Sto Rt	ps	Stop	dit 👻 Name LDtest		Delete	Reve	erse City	Recalc	• • Kr	Optim n W	→ F /ait :00 0	From Usg 00:00 (To Driv 00:00	Rt 2	-	Stop	Name	✓ Tw Un ✓ Var Sav	o panels planned s iants re options	itops s] , _	im V 0 0	/ait 0:00	Usg 00:00	D 1 00
Sto Rt 1	ps	Stop 1	dit v Name LDtest Xopowyr	н Г.Ю	Delete	Reve	erse City Черн	Recalc tiriв, вул	••• Kr 0 14	Optim m W 0 00	→ F ait :00 0 :00 0	From Usg 00:00 (02:52 (Driv 00:00 02:50	Rt 2 2	•	Stop 1	Name LDtest Козаченко С.В.	✓ Tw Un ✓ Var Sav	o panels planned s iants re options Київ	tops s s, вул. Ми] ,К	im V 0 01 2 01	Vait 0:00	Usg 00:00 00:16	Di 00
Sto Rt 1	ps	Stop 1	dit v Name LDtest Хорошун Черняк	н Г.Ю	Delete	Reve	erse City Черн Черн	Recalc чігів, вул чігів, вул. 1	•• Kr 0 14 1 0	Optim M 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00	✓ F ait :00 C :00 C :00 C	From Usg 00:00 (02:52 (02:58 (To Driv 00:00 02:50 02:50	Rt 2 2 2	•	Stop 1 2	Name LDtest Козаченко С.В. Соловйов М.В. (Хорен	✓ Tw Un ✓ Vai Sav (ca)	o panels planned s iants re options Київ Київ	tops 5 3, бул. Ми 3, бул. Зак	л	im V 0 01 2 01 0 01	Vait 0:00 0:00 0:00	Usg 00:00 00:16 00:38	Di 00 00

For all routes, there are several ways to modify them automatically.

St	ops		dit 👻 Delete Reverse	e Recalc 👻	• Op	otim 🔻	From	To								
Rt	•	Stop	Name	City	Km	Wait	Usg	Driv	Arriv	Dep	Time window	Wght	Vol	Third	WBack	١
1	٠		LDtest		0	00:00	00:00	00:00	06:30	06:32	06:30-23:59	0	0	0	0	Γ
1	•	1	Хорошун Г.Ю.	Чернігів, вул	140	00:00	02:52	02:50	09:22	09:27	09:00-16:00	12	0.0	0	1	
1	٠	2	Черняк І.А.	Чернігів, вул. 1	0	00:00	02:58	02:50	09:28	09:36	09:00-16:00	6	0.0	0	2	
1	•	3	Макаренко А.В. """"Coffee Boss"""	Чернігів, вул. 7	1	00:00	03:08	02:53	09:38	09:40	08:00-10:00	18	0.0	2	0	
1	•	4	Колот О.В. КВ Стрижень (Хорека)	Чернігів, вул. В	1	00:00	03:13	02:56	09:43	09:45	10:00-18:00	14	0.0	1	0	
1	•	5	Альянс маркет ТзОВ (Общий)	Чернігів, вул. Г	1	00:00	03:18	02:58	09:48	10:12	08:00-16:00	148	0.2	14	0	

Reverse – Reverts the order of stops.

Recalc



- 1. Fixed stops, free routes start times Calculates the optimal start time. Calculates the start of the route so that all the windows are met. The start time of the route does not depend on the originally entered value. If no such time can be found, an error message occurs.
- 2. Fixed stops, fixed routes start times Calculates breaks in driving. Performs the calculation so that all the delivery windows are maintained. The start time of the route is not changed.
- 3. Free stops, free routes start times System will try to find the shortest way possible between all stops. The beginning of the route is also changed.
- 4. Free stops, fixed routes start times System will try to find the shortest way possible between all

stops. The beginning of the route is unchanged. All other criteria are not taken into account (time windows, vehicle capacity, etc.).

* Note – when you click the **"Recalculate"** button in the case of the 3rd and 4th points, the system arranges the order of visiting points with a minimum mileage, but **WITHOUT** taking into account time windows.

Optimize

•	Optim 👻	From	То		
ł	Free routes sta	irt times	Driv	Arriv	
	Fixed routes st	art times	00:00	06:30	

1. Free route start times – Performs optimization for the selected routes while preserving all the specified conditions and adjusting the start of the route.

Other routes will remain unchanged. If the optimal order of stops is not found, an error message occurs.

To optimize the route, you can also expand the time windows by filling in the time window fields ("**From**", "**To**").

2. Fixed routes start times – Performs optimization for the selected route while preserving time windows. Other routes will remain unchanged.

The route does not start before the initial start of the route has been determined.

If the optimal order of stops is not found, an error message occurs.

To optimize the route, you can also expand the time windows by filling in the time window fields.

2.5.5. Route Header

For each route in planning, there are a few basic indicators to check if the route is valid. If there is a red light on the route, just move the cursor to the light pointer, and tool tip displays the reason

for the route being invalid.

lanni	ng	Plans (GPS	• M	lap																
Ro	utes	Add		Edit	De	elete 🔻	Vie	ew	Optim	•	Analysis	Exp	ort 🔻								
Rt	• Ve	hicle	Tr	Stops	Start	End	Wait	Usg	Driv	Km	WUtil	VUtil	TUtil	Wght	Vol	Third	WBack	VBack	TBack	GWLim	VehT
1	📕 AB	38 86 BO H	1	37	06:55	19:57	00:00	13:02	05:38	162	96%	71%	1%	3,159	5.7	318	33	0.1	69	2,500	0
2	AB	46 14 CO M	1	30	06:51	20:26	00:00	13:35	06:43	308	54%	31%	0%	1,351	2.2	80	40	0.1	78	5,500	0
3	 AB 	46 17 CO M	1	48	07:12	21:58	00:00	14:46	05:53	204	99%	52%	1%	2,470	3.6	133	89	0.2	160	2,500	0
4	• AB	46 23 CO M	1	26	07:07	18:35	00:00	11:28	07:09	344	35%	19%	0%	866	1.3	49	27	0.0	46	5,500	0

Parameters:

- Rt Sequence number of the route. The sequence can be simply changed by drag & drop.
- Vehicle Vehicle registration number.
- Tr The route order on the vehicle.
- Stops Number of stops on the route.
- Start Time to start the route.
- End End of route.
- Wait Waiting time on a route (for example, waiting for a window).
- Usg Usage time incl. driving, unloading, etc.
- Driv Driving time.
- Km Route km.
- WUtil Maximum percentage load on the route.
- VUtil Maximum percentage of volume utilization on route.
- TUtil Maximum percentage of third capacity utilization on route.
- Wght Total weight of orders on the route.
- Vol Total volume of order on the route.
- Third The total number of units of the third capacity on the route.
- WBack Total weight back into the depot.
- VBack The total volume back into the depot.
- TBack The total number of third-dimensional units ack into the depot.
- GWLimit The minimum required weight limit from orders on the route.
- VehT The requested vehicle type on the route.

Additional parameters can be displayed via the context menu ("Columns") above any route.

The order of the columns can be freely changed and their layout can be saved. All columns are sortable.

Rinkai TMS	Main - 1_us

im V	ehT		US Km
0		1	0 2,630
0 60	o to		
0	enter in the	e map	
0 Ve	hicle	F.	
o Dr	iver	+ -	
Co	o-driver		
c Co	olumns	•	Route number
0	0		Vehicle number
0	0		Locked
0	0		Carrier
			Driver
			Co-driver
WBack	VBack	TBack	Comment
0	0	0	City
0	0	0	Departure time and arrival time
2	0.0	4	Delay
3	0.0	4	Km toll
2	0.0	2	Load capacity
1	0.0	3	Volume
1	0.0	4	Third
1	0.0	3	Costs
1	0.0	2	Save columns layout
12	2023	Construction of the	

- Route number
- Vehicle number
- Locked Info about routes lock.
- Carrier
- Driver
- Comment Route comment.
- City
- Delay Maximal value of arrival outside of time window.
- Km toll
- Costs Route costs.

etc.

2.5.6. Route view

First, you need to select a specific route by clicking the mouse in the "Routes" table and then click "**View**" button.

R	ou	tes Add		Edit	D	elete 🔻	Vie	ew	Optim	•	Analysis	Exp	ort 👻								
Rt	•	Vehicle	Tr	Stops	Start	End	Wait	Usg	Driv	Km	WUtil	VUtil	TUtil	Wght	Vol	Third	WBack	VBack	TBack	GWLim	VehT
1		AB 38 86 BO H		37	06:55	19:57	00:00	13:02	05:38	162	96%	71%	1%	3,159	5.7	318	33	0.1	69	2,500	0
2	•	AB 46 14 CO M	1	30	06:51	20:26	00:00	13:35	06:43	308	54%	31%	0%	1,351	2.2	80	40	0.1	78	5,500	0

Use the buttons in the top left corner of the map to move the map without the mouse and in the top right corner you can change the displayed routes.

Other functions are available via the context menu:



- Save Save the route as a picture into selected directory.
- Show stop labels Displays stops sequence on a map.

- Show stop cities Displays cities of a stops.
- Show limitations Displays all restrictions on the map.
- Show roads Displays all accessible roads on map. You need to zoom in to be able to see them.
- Show actual speed Display the actual speeds for roads where this measurement is available.
- Web map The selected point can also be displayed in other maps (Google, Yandex, OSM, Mapy)

You can get more information about the route via the tool tip at the route (hover your mouse over the route and wait for a while).



- Km Total km.
- Time The duration of the route.

• Violation – Information whether any restriction on the route is violated.

2.5.7. Plan analysis

You can check the created plan with a few simple reports that can be viewed and defined by pressing the **"Analyze"** button.



For the actual plan, the system can propose changes leading to savings, at the cost of some violations of the restrictions. It is possible to specify the allowed restriction violation. Restrictions that can be allowed to be violated are:

Veight utilization [%]	110
olume utilization [%]	100
hird utilization [%]	100
ime window from prolongation	00:30:00
ime window to prolongation	00:30:00
laximum stops per route	\checkmark
iross weight limit	\checkmark
ehicle type	\checkmark
ehicle	
outes overlap	
Isage time breaks	
Priving breaks	
laximum route duration	\checkmark

Stops

The system then displays the changes that will bring you the most savings in two tables.

The upper table lists possible moves of orders between routes, and the lower table lists possible placement of unplanned orders. From the list you can select any proposition that can be accessed via the context menu **"Apply"**. This procedure can then be repeated as long as the system finds savings-related shifts.

Analysis												
tops Violations Missed Stop Savings												
Move Stops												
Action	WUtil	VUtil	TUtil	TWF	TWT	Stps	GWLim	VehT	Vehicle	RtsOvr	RtDur	Savings
Move: '112038 - ВІКТОРІЯ РІТЕЙЛ ГРУП ТОВ' from 5/	67%	42%	0%	00:00	00:24	No	No	No	No	00:00	00:00	18
Move: '87756 - Карповський А.Л. Кафе АС (Хорека)'	33%	20%	0%	00:00	00:00	No	No	No	No	00:00	00:00	15
Move: '110149 - Солодовниченко Т.В.' from 15/15 t	70%	38%	0%	00:30	00:12	No	No	No	No	00:00	00:00	12
Move: '81909 - Купрієнко Т.О.' from 2/2 to 1/25	33%	22%	0%	00:04	00:21	No	No	No	No	00:00	00:00	12
Move: '109553 - Усатюк О.А.' from 12/3 to 7/1	31%	20%	0%	00:30	00:00	No	No	No	No	00:00	00:00	11
Move: '110149 - Солодовниченко Т.В.' from 15/15 t	68%	39%	0%	00:30	00:16	No	No	No	No	00:00	00:00	11
Move: '111014 - САЛВІ ГРУП УКРАЇНА ТОВ' from 5/7	97%	57%	0%	00:08	00:04	No	No	No	No	00:00	00:00	10
Move: '99592 - Козаченко С.В.' from 12/2 to 7/1	32%	20%	0%	00:30	00:00	No	No	No	No	00:00	00:00	10
Моve: '97211 - ФУД ТРАФФІК ТОВ (Хорека)' from 15	55 6	Apply	0%	00:29	00:00	No	No	No	No	00:00	00:00	10
Move: '106309 - КОРВЕТ КОРП ТОВ (Хорека)' from	35	279/	0%	00:10	00:00	No	No	No	No	00:00	00:00	9
Move: '106310 - APTBEГА СИСТЕМ ТОВ(Хорека)' fro	35%	27%	0%	00:24	00:00	No	No	No	No	00:00	00:00	9
Move: '96289 - Шалак А.Н. (Хорека)' from 5/2 to 7/1	32%	20%	0%	00:30	00:24	No	No	No	No	00:00	00:00	9
Move: '107713 - Герасимчук О.О. (Хорека)' from 5/1	33%	21%	0%	00:30	00:00	No	No	No	No	00:00	00:00	9
Move: '81909 - Купрієнко Т.О.' from 2/2 to 1/24	33%	22%	0%	00:04	00:10	No	No	No	No	00:00	00:00	9
Move: '32011 - Базис АТ' from 2/20 to 1/11	36%	24%	0%	00:03	00:00	No	No	No	No	00:00	00:00	8
Move: '110994 - Лісний А.В.(Хорека)' from 15/10 to	32%	20%	0%	00:30	00:00	No	No	No	No	00:00	00:00	8
			=									
Unplanned Stops												
Action	WUtil	VUtil	TUtil	TWF	TWT	Stps	GWLim	VehT	Vehicle	RtsOvr	RtDur	Savings
Insert: '93034 - Усик А.А. (Хорека)' to 7/1 (08:30)	32%	20%	0%	00:30	00:20	No	No	Yes	No	00:00	00:00	1
Insert: '61684 - Осадчук Т.С.' to 7/1 (07:30)	32%	20%	0%	00:30	00:00	No	No	Yes	No	00:00	00:00	-0
Insert: '42832 - Чебунін О.Д. (Хорека)' to 7/1 (07:30)	34%	21%	0%	00:30	00:00	No	No	Yes	No	00:00	00:00	-1
Insert: '75377 - Антонюк H.I.' to 7/1 (07:30)	32%	20%	0%	00:30	00:00	No	No	Yes	No	00:00	00:00	-2
Insert: '88263 - Бордюг А.I.' to 7/1 (07:10)	32%	20%	0%	00:00	00:00	No	No	Yes	No	00:00	00:00	-2
Insert: '87554 - Герич Ю.О.' to 7/1 (07:30)	34%	21%	0%	00:30	00:00	No	No	Yes	No	00:00	00:00	-3
Insert: '4390 - Форум BB' to 7/1 (07:30)	31%	19%	0%	00:30	00:00	No	No	Yes	No	00:00	00:00	-3
Insert: '89366 - Балеян О.В.' to 7/1 (07:30)	32%	20%	0%	00:30	00:00	No	No	Yes	No	00:00	00:00	-5
Insert: '70088 - JIEFIOH 2015 TOB' to 7/1 (07:10)	37%	24%	0%	00:00	00:00	No	No	Yes	No	00:00	00:00	-6

Violations

The plan may contain a number of violations of the required restrictions. The system will generate a list of all such violations.

🗿 An	alysis													×
Stops	Violations	Missed Stop Savings					/					/		
•	No	Name	Km	Arriv	Dep	Time window	1	Violation	LdngStr	GWLim	VehT	Vehicle		
•	83097	Сушкевич І. М.		13:07	13:13	09:00-17:00					40			
•	81186	Альянс маркет ТзОВ (Общий)		16:18	16:42	08:00-16 <mark>:00</mark>		00:18						
•	110328	Бусел Л.М. (Хорека)		16:49	16:51	08:00-15 <mark>:00</mark>		01:49						
_	05040	a 116 W 1		10.00	10.00	10.00 10.00		00.53						

Missed Delivery Savings

The table contains potential savings when specific orders is not delivered, including an estimate of the kilometres and time saved.

a	O Analysis													×
p	Stops Violation	Missed Stop Savings												
30	No	Name	Comment	Comment	Wght	Vol	Third	WBack	VBack	TBack	Km	Time	Saving	s
ĺ	83097	Сушкевич І. М.		С-2 (51 Отделение)	23	0.1	0	5	0.0	6	296.6	06:18	2,175.8	2
	112038	ВІКТОРІЯ РІТЕЙЛ ГРУП ТОВ		ОБ-3 (51 Відділення) Order №100	14	0.0	0	4	0.0	6	14.0	00:32	109.83	5
	106386	АРІТЕЙЛ ТОВ		Заказ в 1С создан на основании	2,828	4.1	235	0	0	0	5.2	01:31	101.5	7

2.5.8. Plan export

When the plan is ready, it can be exported to a csv file, excel filr or via web services by pressing the **"Export"** button. It is also possible to set the delivery date, plan lock, plan name, send emails and SMS to all customers with specified e-mail in contacts and send routes to external navigation. All required fields must be entered for sending emails.

Ro	out	es Add		Edit	D	elete 🔻	Vie	ew	Optim	•	Analysis	Export 👻	٦
Rt	•	Vehicle	Tr	Stops	Start	End	Wait	Usg	Driv	Km	WUtil	CSV	v
1	۲	AB 01 58 BK Hu	1	26	06:30	00:37	00:05	18:07	12:37	599	33%	Web services	10
2	•	AB 19 12 BK Hu	1	31	06:30	18:04	00:00	11:34	06:19	294	28%	Excel	12
3		AB 28 16 BO H	1	45	07:06	19:01	00:00	11:55	04:22	167	81%	51% 1%	25

Name	MK -	
Delivery date	2/18/2022	
Save and lock plan		
Send mails & SMSs		
Export routes to GPS prov	ider 📃	

2.6. Plans

At any time of planning, the plan can be saved or older plan deleted. After pressing the **"Save"** button, the user is asked to complete the basic information regarding the saved plan.

Delivery date	2/18/2022	
Lock plan		
LOCK plan		
Send mails & SMSs		
Export routes to GPS provider		

- Name Plan is stored under the specified name. Names are mainly used to navigate the user in the list of plans
- Delivery date The system pre-sets the next business day, but the user can set this value arbitrarily. The date is mainly used when comparing the plan with GPS tracking from vehicles.
- Lock plan If this field is checked, the system itself will delete all the orders contained in the plan. The plan can be unlocked at any time by pressing the "Unlock" button to restore your orders.
- Send mails & SMSs Check this box to automatically send informative mails and text messages to customers, drivers and carriers.
- Export routes to GPS provider Planned routes will be sent to the GPS device if this is possible.

Saved older plans can be also opened. It is only necessary to set the time interval from which the plans are to be loaded and press the "**Load**" button and simply open it with the "**Open**" button. Only unlocked plans can be opened.

Load	Load 12/1/2021 🔳 •		GPS •	Open 👻 Lock	Unlock	Delete		Save							
Date	lime	Name		Delivery date	Delivery day	Status	Act	Vehicles	Routes	Stops	US	OutTW	Km	Duration	Costs
1/10/22	16:30	МК - тест		1/6/22	Thu	Unlocked		13	13	483	0	0	2,576	139:44	30,153
2/17/22	10:12	MK -		2/18/22	Fri	Unlocked		16	16	484	91	16	3,236	176:23	36,700

The saved plan can be opened together with all others, e.g. late orders from the "Orders" sheet (plan view + Inbox). In this case, you must select the option <u>"With unplanned stops"</u> when opening the plan.

Depots	Depots Orders			Vehicle	s	Planning	Plans	GPS	Map				
Load	12/1/202	:1		GPS	•	Open	•	Lock	Unlock	Dele	te	Save	
Date	Time	Name			🗸 With	out un	planned stops		Status	Act	Vehicles	R	
1/10/22	16:30	МК - тест			With	unpla	nned stops		Unlocked		13		
2/17/22	2/17/22 10:12 MK -					With	unpla	nned stops and	cumulation	Unlocked		16	
2.7. Undelete plan/vehicle/location

If you accidentally have deleted: Vehicle/Location/Plan, then there is an opportunity to **restore** it. To do this, you need to right-click on the upper gray panel (near the buttons – add, edit,delete) and then click on "Undelete vehicle / location / plan".

Depo	ts 🔍 Locat	tions	Orders	• V	ehicles		Planning	PI	ans	GPS	🖲 Map	
Add	Edit	Dele	te Nun	nber: 12,	535				112.1.1		-	
•	No Nam	e			Addres	s	Latit	tude	Longie		. window	,
Depots	Locations	 Orders 	Vehicles	😑 Plan	ning	Plans	GPS 🔹	Мар				
Add	Edit De	lete Impo	rt 👻 Numbe	er: 24/24 • V	Veight: 83,	500/83,500 •	Volume: 193	/193 • Third	: 1,259,00	0/1,259,000	Undelete vehicle	
No	Number plate	LdCap	Volume	Third	\checkmark	Availability		Vehic	le type	Vehicle prof	file Carrier	Driver
K00000271	AB 01 57 BT Hu	3,100	8.0	31,000		06:30-21:00			0	Грузовые	2	
Depots	Locations	Orders	Vehicl	es 🧶	Planning	g Plan	s GPS	<u>•</u> M	lap			
Load	12/1/2021	GPS	• Ope	n 💌	Lock	Un	lock	Delete	S	ave		
Date	Time Name			Delivery	date	Delivery d	ay Sta	itus /	Act	Vehicles	Undelete Plan	ops

Next, select the dates you need and upload:

Load	11/1/202	1 🔳 2/17/2022 🔳 •	Undelete		
Date	Time	Name	Delivery date	Delivery day	Status
/7/22	15:38	МК - тест	2/8/22	Tue	Unlocked
/7/22	15: <mark>4</mark> 1	МК - тест	2/8/22	Tue	Unlocked
/7/22	15:50	МК - тест	2/8/22	Tue	Unlocked
/7/22	1 <mark>5:51</mark>	МК - тест3	2/8/22	Tue	Unlocked
/7/22	15:57	МК - тест4	2/8/22	Tue	Unlocked
/7/22	16:02	МК - тест5	2/8/22	Tue	Unlocked
/7/22	16:07	МК - тестб	2/8/22	Tue	Unlocked
/7/22	16:13	МК - тест7	2/8/22	Tue	Unlocked
/7/22	16:15	МК - тест8	2/8/22	Tue	Unlocked
/7/22	16:16	МК - тест 9	2/8/22	Tue	Unlocked
/7/22	16:19	МК - тест10	2/8/22 Tue Lock		

Select the plan /vehicle/location and click on the "Undelete" button.

Jndelete	Plan			- /	
Load	1/1/2022	2/17/2022	Undelete	-	
Date	Time	Name	Delivery date	Delivery day	Status
2/7/22	15:38	МК - тест	2/8/22	Tue	Unlocked
2/7/22	15:41	МК - тест	2/8/22	Tue	Unlocked
2/7/22	15:50	МК - тест	2/8/22	Tue	Unlocked
2/7/22	15:51	МК - тест3	2/8/22	Tue	Unlocked

2.8. GPS

In the "GPS" section, it is possible to compare planned routes with actual departures.

The first step is to select a plan to compare. In the 'Data' section, the 'Plan' tab, select the schedule and press the **'GPS'** button. Beware, the plan must be locked.

Depots	O Loc	ations	 Orders 	Vehicles	•	Plannin	ng Pla	ns	GPS	Map	
Load	12/1/202	21	GPS	Open	•	Lock	U	nlock	De	lete	Save
Date	Time	Name	L		Delivery	/ date	Delivery	day	Status	Act	Vehicles
1/10/22	16:30	МК - тес	т		1/6/	22	Thu	1	Locked		13
2/7/22	16:19	МК - тес	т10		2/8/	22	Tue		Locked		1
0.47.000	10.10				-						

2.8.1. Information panel

The information panel provides basic information about the plan being compared.

Km ★ Km difference ★ Not visited ★ Outside window ★ I 1,025 • 1,622 , ス 597 • 58% , ス 0 • 0% 3 • 4% 4	Date 12/18/2021 🗮	Time 	Paramet	О Search	ے Actuals
---	----------------------	----------	---------	-------------	--------------

- Km Planned km | Actually driven km / Planned toll km | Actual toll km
- Km difference Distance difference between plan and reality | Percentage of difference / Toll km difference between plan and reality | Percentage of difference.
- Not visited The number of stops not visited according to GPS | Percentage of the not visited stops from all stops. / The number of visited stops | Percentage of visited stops from all stops.
- Outside window Number of stops visited outside the time window |Percentage of stops outside the time window. / Number of stops visited after time window | Percentage of stops visited after time window.
- Date Date of GPS positions.
- Time Time of last update.

Parameters

Arrival time tolerance	00:15:00			
Depot pairing precision [m]	1500			
Stops pairing precision [m]	100			
Don't count kms before & aft	er 📃			
ОК	Cancel			

- Arrival time tolerance Set a tolerance to identify arrivals outside the time window. Arrival is marked as incorrect when the set limit is exceeded.
- Depo pairing precision [m] To mark a depo as visited, the system must find an actual stop within a
 maximum of the specified number of meters.
 - The recommended radius should be between 100 and 250 meters.
- Stops pairing precision [m] To mark a stop as visited, the system must find an actual stop within the specified number of meters from the planned stop.
 - The recommended radius should be between 100 and 250 meters.
- Don't count kms before and after If checked, does not count first leg to depot and last leg from depot (e.g. trip to car park).

2.8.2. Route view



The first table lists all vehicles from the selected plan. For each vehicle, the license plate, the number of kilometres planned, the number of kilometres actually travelled and the total delay on the route are shown. If the actual route is ahead of the plan, the delay value is negative and green.

The timeline shows all expected stops for customers and depots. The meaning of colours is as follows:

Green – The planned stop was visited. I.e. The vehicle stopped at a predefined distance from the point of unloading. The unloading took place in the required time window.

Yellow – The planned stop was visited. I.e. The vehicle stopped at a predefined distance from the point of unloading. The unloading took place outside the required time window.

Red – Stop has not occurred.

Reasons why a system is marked as a non-executed stop may be several:

- The stop did not take place.
- The stop has taken place, but shorter than the defined minimum time (default setting is 90 seconds).
- The stop has taken place, but at a greater distance from the predefined point. Here you need to correct the coordinates of the location to match the actual stop.

The **"Refresh"** button updates the position data. This step should be performed if there is a change in setting of some parameters or if you want to get the current position data.



You can click on the "View" button to display the actual route and planned route.

Refresh	•	An	alysis	Save		View		-		-
Numb	er pla	te	Delay	PKm	Diff	AT@S	Diff	Speed	Diff -	- 8
06527	ME		01:31	83	-7	00:11	00:04	30.1	-4.6	
ISUZU	AA95	92	-06:30	396	91	07:58	-07:05	53.8	3.4	

The planned route is displayed in blue, the real route is displayed in red.

The meaning of colours of stops is different:

- Green A planned stop has been made.
- Pale Red A real stop that was not planned.
- Red No stop.



When displaying positions via the context menu, a list of measured GPS points is available. Several basic information is given for each point. In addition, each point can be displayed in other maps (Yandex, Google, Mapy, OSM).

Track • Vehicle: 06527ME • Km: 83 -> 76 > Time Km Type Durati... Speed Latitude Longitude Web map $\rightarrow \parallel \leftarrow \parallel \downarrow \parallel \uparrow \parallel + \parallel -$ > X 49.3733 32.0283 OSM 07:51 0 Break 00:04 0 Google Mapy Vandex 07:55 0.0 Driving 00:00 9 49.3738 32.0282 Google Мару OSM Yandex P-10 07:55 00:00 49.3738 32.0270 0.2 Driving 7 Google OSM Mapy Yandex Дахнівка 07:55 0.2 00:07 49.3736 32.0262 6 OSM Break Google Mapy Yandex 08:03 0.3 00:00 49.3737 32.0265 OSM Driving 8 Google Мару Yandex 08:03 0.3 Driving 00:00 7 49.3738 32.0267 Google OSM Мару Yandex Driving 08:03 0.4 00:00 49.3739 32.0282 Google OSM Мару Yandex 5 08:04 0.5 Driving 00:00 5 49.3727 32.0275 Google OSM Mapy Yandex *ЛICOP* 08:05 0.7 Driving 00:00 7 49.3718 32.0290 Google OSM Mapy Yandex 08:05 0.8 Break 00:32 7 49.3715 32.0285 Google OSM Mapy Yandex 08:38 00:01 49.3711 32.0302 OSM Мару 0.9 Break 0 Google Yandex 08:39 49.3719 32.0315 1.0 Driving 00:00 8 Google OSM Mapy Yandex Південно-Західний 08:39 1.1 Driving 00:00 4 49.3725 32.0320 Google OSM Мару Yandex -08:41 1.5 Driving 00:00 10 49.3761 32.0339 Google OSM Мару Yandex 08:42 2.0 Driving 00:00 6 49,3804 32,0357 Google OSM Мару Yandex 08:44 3.2 Driving 00:00 17 49.3851 32.0393 Google OSM Мару Yandex 08:45 3.8 Driving 00:00 16 49.3887 32.0447 Google OSM Mapy Yandex Сади 08:45 4.1 3 49.3881 32.0480 Google Driving 00:00 OSM Mapy Yandex 08:47 4.7 H-16 Driving 00:00 49.3921 32.0532 Google OSM 16 Мару Yandex 08:48 5.4 Driving 00:00 15 49.3967 32.0592 Google OSM Mapy Yandex Save. 00:00 0 49.3985 32.0616 Google OSM Мару Yandex Opti 00:00 12 49.4013 32.0571 Google OSM Мару Yandex Web map Show positions 00:01 0 49.4019 32.0559 Google OSM Mapy Yandex ΠΑΤ "A Show limitations 00:00 32.0541 OSM 14 49,4029 Google Mapy Yandex Show roads Google Мару 00:01 0 49.4043 32.0515 OSM Yandex Show actual speeds 00:00 8 49.4044 32.0511 Google OSM Mapy Yandex Colorize by 00:00 8 49.4012 32.0469 Google OSM Мару Yandex

2.8.3. Routes and Stops

Each vehicle has a number of data visible:

- License plate
- Delay Total route duration vs. planned route duration.
- PKm Planned km.
- Diff Difference between planned and actual km. if the number is negative and is highlighted in green, it means underrun. Underrun most often occurs if the route is assembled manually in an illogical sequence or there are unvisited points in the route. If the number is positive and highlighted in red – overrun.
- AT@S Average unloading time at customer.
- Diff Difference of average unloading time from average planned unloading time.
- Speed Actual average speed.
- Diff Difference of actual average speed from planned average speed.

•	Numb	er plat	te	Delay	PKm	Diff	AT@S	Diff	Speed	Diff -			9	10
•	06527	ME		01:31	83	-7	00:11	00:04	30.1	-4.6				
	ISUZU	AA95	92	-06:30	396	91	07:58	-07:05	53.8	3.4	Notifica	ations		
•	ISUZU	AA95	78	-00:50	310	-77	00:12	-00:05	40.8	-1.2	Go to			
•	AT804	1BO IS	SUZ	-00:17	180	3	00:09	-00:01	35.0	3.6	Colum			
											Column	ns 🔸	No	
												1	Expect	ted arrival at
•	Km	(Dep	Delay	Arriv	Delay	Dur	Delay	AT@S	Delay			Expect	ted arrival in
	396	0	7:30	00:43	22:49		15:19		07:58	-07:05			Actua	l km
													Differe	ence %
													Confir	med extra km
				_	1								Confir	med extra duration
•	PISt	AcSt	No		Name	e			City		PairPrc	Time	Plann	ed km toll
•	1	1	00-00	0000665	Kus	ака рбл.	Бронарс	р., с	d.	innese, Ep.,	25	08:00-18 <mark>:0</mark> 0	Actua	l km toll
													Differ	ence
													Differe	ence %
												-	Save o	columns layout

Other columns can be displayed via the context menu:

- No Vehicle number.
- Actual km
- Confirmed extra km
- Confirmed extra duration
- Planned km toll
- Actual km toll

- Difference The difference in toll km against the plan.
- Save Column Layout Saves the selected column layout.

Also, if necessary, you can change the order of the columns.

2.8.3.1. Routes data

Routes data:

•	Km	Dep	Delay	Arriv	Delay	Dur	Delay	AT@S	Delay	
•	180	07:30	00:11	18:18	-00:27	10:48	-00:38	00:09	-00:01	

- Km Planned km.
- Dep Planned start of route.
- Delay Delay of the route start.
- Arriv Planned end of route.
- Delay Delay of the route end.
- Duration The total duration of the route.
- Delay Delay of route duration.
- AT@S Planned average unloading time.
- Delay Delay of average unloading.

Other columns can be displayed via the context menu:

Edit			
Column	s 🕨	No	
PairPrc		Driver	
29	08:01	Co-driver	
53	08:01	Km toll	
36	08:01	Confirmed extra km	
43	08:0	Confirmed extra duration	
10	08:00	Actual departure time	
6	08:00	Actual arrival time	
7	08:00	Weight	
93	08:00	Volume	
16	08:00	Third	
34	08:00	Weight back	
35	08:00	Volume back	
41	08:00	Third back	
34	11:00	Save columns layout	-
53	08.00		

• No – Route number.

- Driver
- Co-driver
- Km toll
- Confirmed extra km
- Confirmed extra time
- Weight
- Volume

2.8.3.2. Stops data

Stops data:

•	PISt	AcSt	No	Name	City	PairPrc	Time window	Arri	v Delay	ActArriv	Dep	Delay	Dur	Delay
٠	1	44	217	Клиент 217	Носівка, вул. Ц	41	05:00-15:00	06:1	1 08:46	14:57	06:21	09:01	00:10	00:15
•	2	45	219	Клиент 219	Носівка, вул. Ц	48	04:00-13:00	06:2	2 09:01	15:22	06:30	09:03	00:08	-00:06
٠	3	46	478	Клиент 478	Носівка, вул. Ц	45	05:00-14:00	06:3	0 08:52	15:22	06:38	08:55	80:00	-00:06
•	4	47	546	Клиент 546	Носівка, вул. В	27	04:00-15:00	06:3	8 08:44	15:22	06:48	08:49	00:09	-00:01
٠	5	49	468	Клиент 468	Носівка, вул. В	14	04:00-13:00	06:4	8 08:50	15:38	06:58	08:42	00:10	-00:07
٠	6	60	637	Клиент 637	Носівка, вул. П		03:00-17:00	06:5	9		07:07		00:08	
٠	7	52	528	Клиент 528	Носівка, вул. В	58	04:00-15:00	07:1	4 08:48	16:02	07:23	08:56	00:10	00:07
•	8	53	232	Клиент 232	Носівка, вул. В	84	04:00-15:00	07:2	4 08:50	16:14	07:31	08:49	00:07	-00:05
٠	9	58	321	Клиент 321	Носівка, вул. К	8	04:00-14:00	07:3	5 09:16	16:51	07:43	09:13	00:09	-00:03
•	10	42	228	Клиент 228	Володькова Ді	32	04:00-14:00	08:0	8 06:09	14:18	08:18	06:14	00:10	-00:04
٠	11	39	226	Клиент 226	Володькова Ді	19	04:00-15:00	08:1	9 05:52	14:11	08:27	06:06	00:09	00:02
٠	12	40	227	Клиент 227	Володькова Ді	24	04:00-15:00	08:2	7 05:43	14:11	08:36	05:48	00:09	-00:05
٠	13	41	433	Клиент 433	Володькова Ді	43	04:00-16:00	08:3	6 05:34	14:11	08:44	05:34	00:07	-00:07
٠	14	34	626	Клиент 626	Ніжин, вул. Си	12	04:00-15:00	09:0	5 04:17	13:22	09:15	04:12	00:10	-00:05
-	10	17	571	V 571	115	00	04.00 16.00	00.1	7 02.01	11.10	00.27	01.50	00.10	00-04

Identifiers:

- * Red point not visited.
- * Green the point has been visited.
- * Yellow the point was visited outside the time window.
 - PISt Planned stop order.
 - AcSt Actual stop order.
 - No Location number.
 - Name
 - City
 - PairPrc Pairing precision, i.e. the distance of the actual stop from the expected point.
 - Time window
 - Arriv Planned arrival at the stop.
 - Delay Delay of arrival.
 - Dep Planned departure from the stop.
 - Delay Delay of departure.
 - Duration Planned unloading duration.
 - Delay Delay of unloading.

If the planned stop is paired with the actual one, the next table is a list of GPS positions assigned to a specific scheduled stop. Each GPS point is a record of arrival time, standing time, pairing accuracy, and geographic coordinates.

Time	Duration	PairPrc	Latitude	Longitude	Web map				
14:57	00:25	41	50.9392	31.5818	Google OSM Mapy		Yandex		

2.8.4. Confirmed extra km and duration

Based on GPS data, the dispatcher can add confirmed extra kilometres and extra time to each route. All you need to do is to display the <u>"Confirmed km</u>" or <u>"Confirmed duration"</u> columns in the context menu.

	00327191	-	01.51	05	- 7 1	v	00.00	00.11	00.04	30.1	-4.0		
6	ISUZU A	A9592	-06:30	396	91	0	00:00	07:58	-07:05	53.8	3.4		
•	ISUZU A	A9578	-00:50	310	-77	0	00:00	00:12	-00:05	40.8	-1.2	Notifications	
•	AT80418	BO ISUZ	-00:17	180	3	0	00:00	00:09	-00:01	35.0	3.6	Go to	
						6						Columns 🕨 🕨	No
						_						-	Expected arrival at
•	Km	Dep	Delay	Arriv	Delay	Dur	Delay	AT@S	Delay				Expected arrival in
C	396	07:30	00:43	22:49		15:19		07:58	-07:05				Actual km
													Difference %
		1											✓ Confirmed extra km
•	PISt A	cSt No		Nam	e			City		PairP	rc Tin	ne window Arri	 Confirmed extra duration

The extra mileage can then be edited via the context menu, option **"Edit"**. Then just enter confirmed data, including the possibility to select the reason for confirmation and insert a comment.

60 Edit		×
Confirmed extra km	٥	
Confirmed extra duration	00:00:00	
Reason		•
Comment		
ОК	Cancel	

2.8.5. Wire map and unmatched positions

The wire map shows all stops. Grey colour displays **unplanned stops**. The green ones are **planned and visited**, the red ones are **not visited**.

The table below is a list of all unplanned stops, including the duration and the ability to scroll through other map data.



Unpaired positions

Time	Duration	Latitude	Longitude		Web	map	
08:51	00:01	49.4019	32.0559	Google	OSM	Мару	Yandex
08:53	00:01	49.4043	32.0515	Google	OSM	Мару	Yandex
09:07	00:01	49.4048	32.0451	Google	OSM	Мару	Yandex
13:00	00:01	49.4656	32.0080	Google	OSM	Мару	Yandex
13:02	00:01	49.4645	32.0107	Google	OSM	Мару	Yandex
13:04	00:05	49.4623	32.0108	Google	OSM	Mapy	Yandex

2.8.6. Edit location geocodes

The wire map sometimes shows that the customer's location on the map is not accurate and the actual stop is grey point in the map and listed in the "**Unpaired stop**" table.

Then you can simply adjust location position according to reality.

→ ← ↓ Unpaired p)↑+-		0				
Time	Duration	Latitude	Longitude		Web	map	
00:09	05:51	50.5234	30.6374	Google	OSM	Мару	Yandex
10:43	00:02	50.6419	31.0250	Google	OSM	Мару	Yandex
12:11	00:03	50.6265	30.9103	Google	OSM	Мару	Yandex
12:59	00:06	50.5621	30.7749	Google	OSM	Мару	Yandex
13:24	00:04	50.5557	30.6470	Google	OSM	Мару	Yandex

Select a stop outside the plan on the schematic map (after clicking on the stop, a line with information about the stop will be highlighted in the table under the map) and an unvisited point, then click the "**Geocode**" button.

An additional window with a map will be opened, there you can confirm the changes simply by pressing the "**OK**" button.

On the map, the original location is marked with a red circle and the new location is marked with a black icon.

🗿 Geocode • Клиент 420 • Km: 26.6 • Violation: No × $\rightarrow \leftarrow \downarrow \uparrow + -$ 0 9 20 m ⊢ © OpenStreetMap contributors Country Latitude Longitude Street No Postcode City Street No Postcode City Калинівка, військова час No content in table Country UA Geocode Google OSM Mapy Yandex

OK Cancel

2.8.7. Mail

In case of a delay of vehicle delay on the route, it is possible to simply send an email message to all remaining customers via the context menu above the specific vehicle, the **"Notification"** option (GPS tab, right click – Notifications).

The user can still manually edit the mailing list.

	Depots	Location	ıs 🧧	Orders	•	/ehicles	• P	lanning	Plar	is (GPS	• M	lap								
R	efresh 💌 An	alysis	Save	e •	View							-									
	Number plate	Delay	PKm	Diff	CXKm	CXDur	AT@S	Diff	Speed	Diff	-	3-	4	-5-	6	-7-	-8-	-()-10-	-11-	
•	AB 01 57 BT Hu	00:42	362	-49	0	00:00	00:12	-00:06	50.1	4.8							- 201	4	n hil i h		
	AB 01 58 BK Hu	07:05	254	-127	0	00:00	00:10	-00:02	44.3	0.2								L	Notification	S	ſ
•	AB 28 16 BO H	01:36	166	-79	0	00:00	00:15	00:01	35.4	-8.4						!		!	Go to	•	I
•	AB 28 23 BO H	-11:18	920	-524	0	00:00	80:00	-00:02	42.6	0.9							1 1		Columns		
	AB 38 86 BO H	02:53	149	-90	0	00:00	00:12	-00:03	32.4	-9.4						1	1			1)

2.8.8. Analysis

For quick orientation in comparing plan with GPS data, there are a number of analytical reports available by pressing the **"Analysis"** button.

																Ĺ
Km			Average time at	stop			Routes					Unpaired positions				
Vehicle	PKm	AKm	Vehicle		AT@S	Diff	Vehicle		Dep	DTD	ATD	Vehicle		Time [Duration	
AB 62 67 BO Hundai HD65	468	665	AB 62 68 BO Hu	ndai HD65	00:11	00:0	AB 62 68	BO Hundai HD65	03:08	04:06	02:37	AB 01 58 BK Hunda	ai HD72	14:02	10:04	
AB 83 47 BE Isuzu NQR	407	426	AB 28 16 BO Hu	ndai HD65	00:15	00:0	AB 01 58	BK Hundai HD72	03:24	02:58	-01:16	AB 71 29 CK Scania	in li	14:26	09:24	
AB 71 29 CK Scania	53	72	AB 71 29 CK Sca	nia	00:39	0:00	AB 46 14	CO Mers 513	03:29	04:10	-00:03	AB 62 67 BO Hund	ai HD65	21:24	08:52	
AB 47 21 CO Mers 513	72	72	AB 62 73 BO Hu	ndai HD65	00:11	-00:C	AB 28 23	BO Hundai HD65	03:52	02:29	-14:09	AB 71 29 CK Scania	in	00:10	08:44	
AB 62 63 BO Hundai HD65	87	68	AB 47 21 CO Me	rs 513	00:11	-00:C	AB 01 57	BT Hundai HD72	03:57	03:35	00:18	AB 28 23 BO Hund	ai HD65	20:56	08:18	
AB 38 90 BO Hundai HD65	338	313	AB 48 16 CO Me	rs 513	00:12	-00:C	AB 62 72	BO Hundai HD65	03:57	03:42	01:29	AB 28 23 BO Hund	ai HD65	15:51	08:09	
AB 47 09 CO Mers 513	215	176	AB 62 63 BO Hu	ndai HD65	00:13	-00:C	AB 38 90	BO Hundai HD65	04:14	02:48	01:14	AB 38 86 BO Hund	ai HD65	00:03	07:24	
AB 48 16 CO Mers 513	129	84	AB 47 14 CO Me	rs 513	00:13	-00:C	AB 62 63	BO Hundai HD65	04:18	03:42	05:12	AB 62 72 BO Hund	ai HD65	16:38	07:21	
AB 01 57 BT Hundai HD72	362	313	AB 01 58 BK Hur	ndai HD72	00:10	-00:C	AB 47 21	CO Mers 513	04:22	02:13	03:19	AB 46 14 CO Mers	513	00:00	07:06	
AB 28 16 BO Hundai HD65	166	87	AB 47 09 CO Me	rs 513	00:11	-00:C	AB 47 14	CO Mers 513	04:30	02:58	-00:57	AB 62 63 BO Hund	ai HD65	00:08	07:02	
AB 62 72 BO Hundai HD65	233	154	AB 28 23 BO Hu	ndai HD65	00:08	-00:C	AB 28 16	BO Hundai HD65	04:35	02:25	-09:09	AB 47 09 CO Mers	513	00:09	07:00	
AB 38 86 BO Hundai HD65	149	59	AB 46 14 CO Me	rs 513	00:11	-00:C	AB 62 73	BO Hundai HD65	04:40	02:27	-01:03	AB 46 14 CO Mers	513	16:52	06:58	
AB 46 14 CO Mers 513	158	62	AB 62 72 BO Hu	ndai HD65	00:13	-00:C	AB 62 67	BO Hundai HD65	04:47	02:54	-04:05	AB 48 16 CO Mers	513	00:07	06:53	
AB 62 68 BO Hundai HD65	341	215	AB 38 90 BO Hu	ndai HD65	00:13	-00:C	AB 47 09	CO Mers 513	04:49	02:54	01:01	AB 62 72 BO Hund	ai HD65	00:01	06:50	
AB 01 58 BK Hundai HD72	254	126	AB 38 86 BO Hu	ndai HD65	00:12	-00:C	AB 48 16	CO Mers 513	05:15	02:44	03:01	AB 62 67 BO Hund	ai HD65	00:06	06:46	
AB 62 73 BO Hundai HD65	346	198	AB 01 57 BT Hur	ndai HD72	00:12	-00:C	AB 71 29	CK Scania	05:20	04:55	06:39	AB 01 57 BT Hunda	ai HD72	00:08	06:36	
		~*	1000000	1 . UBCE	00.40		10.00.00	1000 100000	AF FF			40.00000	- UBGE	00.05		
Unpaired stops			Arrival outside	the time win	dow			Time at custome	er shorter			Time at custome	er exceeded			
Vehicle	Location	City	Location	Time win	dow	Arriv	Diff	Location	Duration	Duration	Diff	Location	Duration	Duration	n Diff	ff
AB 01 58 BK Hundai HD72	Клиент 401	Бог	Клиент 614	<mark>03</mark> :00-04	:00 0 <mark>4:</mark>	15:24	10:24	Клиент 578	01:06	00:06	-01:00	Клиент 544	00:20	01:14	00:5	54
AB 01 58 BK Hundai HD72	Клиент 420	Kaz	Клиент 510	05 <mark>:00-</mark> 08	:00	17:48	09:48	Клиент 561	01:51	01:09	-00:42	Клиент 430	00:08	00:51	00:4	43
AB 28 23 BO Hundai HD65	Клиент 637	Ho	Клиент 17	05 <mark>:00-</mark> 08	:00	16:07	08:07	Клиент 612	00:51	00:17	-00:34	Клиент 257	00:07	00:46	00:3	39
AB 28 23 BO Hundai HD65	Клиент 196	Нія	Клиент 483	0 <mark>4:0</mark> 0-07	:00	13:23	06:23	Клиент 617	00:34	00:02	-00:33	Клиент 314	00:20	00:56	00:3	36
AB 28 23 BO Hundai HD65	Клиент 272	Hix	Клиент 330	05 <mark>:00-0</mark> 9	:00	15:05	06:05	Клиент 614	00:46	00:14	-00:32	Клиент 483	00:13	00:39	00:2	26
AB 46 14 CO Mers 513	Клиент 473	Киї	Клиент 273	05 <mark>:00</mark> -08	:00	13:49	05:49	Клиент 620	00:38	00:07	-00:32	Клиент 425	00:06	00:30	00:2	24
AB 46 14 CO Mers 513	Клиент 319	Киї	Клиент 419	04:00-07	:00	12:40	05:40	Клиент 619	00:34	00:03	-00:31	Клиент 233	00:35	00:59	00:2	24
AB 46 14 CO Mers 513	Клиент 1	Киї	Клиент 534	05 <mark>:00-11</mark>	00	16:40	05:40	Клиент 618	00:32	00:03	-00:29	Клиент 47	00:40	01:01	00:2	21
AB 47 09 CO Mers 513	Клиент 491	Bac	Клиент 596	05 <mark>:00-</mark> 08	:00	13:30	05:30	Клиент 615	00:34	00:06	-00:29	Клиент 101	00:10	00:30	00:2	20
AB 47 14 CO Mers 513	Клиент 621	Киї	Клиент 558	05:00-13	:00	18:22	05:22	Клиент 172	00:35	00:07	-00:28	Клиент 504	00:10	00:29	00:1	19
AB 47 21 CO Mers 513	Клиент 481	Киї	Клиент 365	04:00-08	:00	13:12	05:12	Клиент 616	00:32	00:05	-00:27	Клиент 312	00:20	00:38	00:1	18
AB 47 21 CO Mers 513	Клиент 361	Киї	Клиент 615	06:00-11	00	16:11	05:11	Клиент 624	00:35	00:09	-00:27	Клиент 141	00:08	00:24	00:1	17
AB 47 21 CO Mers 513	Клиент 259	Киї	Клиент 346	04:00-13	:00	17:58	04:58	Клиент 49	00:30	00:06	-00:24	Клиент 213	00:07	00:23	00:1	15
AB 62 63 BO Hundai HD65	Клиент 162	Киї	Клиент 591	04:00-12	:00	16:55	04:55	Клиент 613	00:34	00:10	-00:24	Клиент 217	00:10	00:25	00:1	15
AB 62 67 BO Hundai HD65	Клиент 317	Чe	Клиент 57	04:00-08	:00	12:53	04:53	Клиент 498	00:37	00:13	-00:24	Клиент 575	00:14	00:28	00:1	14
AB 62 67 BO Hundai HD65	Клиент 523	Че	Клиент 579	06:00-14	:00	18:46	04:46	Клиент 540	00:36	00:12	-00:24	Клиент 169	00:08	00:22	00:1	14
			10 4.14			10.15				00.00	00.00		00.40			

Km – A list of all vehicles showing the planned kilometres, actual kilometres and the absolute difference between plan and reality.

Average time at stop – A list of all vehicles showing the planned average unloading time, actual average unloading time and the absolute difference between the plan and the actual situation.

Routes – List of all routes with information about delays on the start, end and total duration of the routes

Unpaired positions – List of all unplanned vehicle stops, stop time and stop duration. The stop position can be checked by clicking on the different maps using the link.

Unpaired stops – A list of all planned stops that were not tracked by GPS tracking. Possible causes may also be wrong geocoding or extremely short unloading times.

Arrival outside the time window – List of all customers who have violated the requested time window, arrival time, and violation value.

Time at customer shorter – List of all stops where the loading time was shorter than the plan (Customer / Planned unloading duration / Actual unloading duration / Difference).

Time at customer exceeded – A list of all stops where the landing time was longer than the plan (Customer / Planned unloading duration / Actual unloading duration / Difference).

2.9. Map

In the "Map" tab, the user can edit map data.

You can close or add restrictions to individual road sections, or you can mark a polygon on the map. Individual adjustments can be freely edited or deleted.

Add restriction to route section

First, you need to zoom in to see road sections as blue arrows. Then find the needed road or several roads and select <u>"Create polygon"</u> through the context menu on the map.



Edit the polygon to the desired shape. To add another vertex, hold down the "Ctrl" key and click any edge of the polygon.

Then click "Add" in the context menu above the polygon.



Next, fill in the restriction information:

Map override	2	×
Name	1	
Max weight [kg]	2999	
Max height [cm]		
Max width [cm]		
Max length [cm]		
Speed factor [%]		
Closed	No	•
Date	2/17/2022	
Active	\checkmark	
[OK Cancel	

- Name The description of the restriction.
- Max weight [kg] No entry of vehicles heavier than the specified value. If the road needs to be closed for the reason that it is not entry for any vehicles then indicate the weight of 1 kg;
- Max height [cm] No entry of vehicles higher than the specified value.
- Max width [cm] No entry of vehicles wider than the specified value.
- Max Llength [cm] No entry of vehicles longer than the specified value.
- Speed factor Decelerates or accelerates a given section. If you need to slow down a section of the road, then set the coefficient less than 100%, if you need to speed up, then more than 100%, respectively.
- Closed "yes" in this case, the road disappears and isn't readable by the system (not recommended), "no" the road is closed due to all restrictions, but if a delivery point appears there, a route will be built to it (recommended option).
- Date we recommend that the start date be indicated a day earlier than the restriction being made, the end date – if temporary, for example, road repair, then you need to select the approximate end date, if the road needs to be closed forever – 2099.
- Active The restriction is / is not active.

2.10. Menu

At the top of the screen is a basic menu through which you can set other parameters of the system or access other functionalities.

	200		-	
Depot	View	Reporting	Admin	
Provide State				

2.10.1. Depot

2.10.1.1. Units

Any units (kg, pallets, ADR points, etc.) can be used during import of orders from the master system or manually entered.

User-defined units are then converted to units in which the vehicle capacity is defined, depending on the settings.

It is also possible to define a number of parameters for every unit that have an impact on optimization. Units can be added, changed or deleted. **Note that if a unit is deleted, it will not be possible to open older plans that contain orders with a deleted unit!**

0 Units	;										8	53	×
Add	Edit	D	elete										
Id	Unit	Weight	Volume	Third	WBack	VBack	TBack	T@D	T@C	T@DB			
1	vip	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	900	0			
W	Bec	1	0	0	0	0	0	0.5	3	0			
WB	Вес наз	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	3	0.5			
7	Время	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0			
BOx	коробка	15	0.1	0	0	0	0	15	60	15			
Big BOX	коробка велика	50	0.5	0	0	0	0	600	300	0			
VB	Объ наз	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0			
٧	Объем	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
Стои	Стоимость	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0			
SKU	строки в накла	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	100	0			
					[Close	:						

- Id User defined id of the unit.
- Unit Name of the unit.
- Weight The weight of specified unit.
- Volume The volume of the specified unit.
- Third What is the size of the unit in the third dimension.
- WBack How many kilograms will be delivered back in case of single unit delivery.
- VBack What is the volume that will be delivered back in case of single unit delivery.

- TBack What is the size of unit that will be delivered back in case of single unit delivery.
- T@D How many seconds it takes to load one unit in the warehouse.
- T@C How many seconds it takes to unload one unit at the customer.
- T@DB How many seconds will it take to control the delivery of one unit when returning to the depot.

2.10.1.2. Vehicle types

Vehicle types are used for definition of different vehicle characteristics.

The table is used to described them. The vehicle type of given vehicle is then compared with the required vehicle type for the location or order. The properties are stored and further displayed in the form of a bitmap, where the individual properties correspond to the positions from the "Digit" column.

🚺 Vehi	icle Types		—	×
Add	d Edit	Delete		
Digit	Name			
1	tst			

2.10.2. View

2.10.2.1. Depot capacity

Using this option, you can show or hide the number of vehicles that can be loaded in the depot at the same time, i.e. the number of available ramps depending on the time of day.

You can adjust the capacity by selecting the desired time from the list and pressing the "+" or "-" buttons.



2.10.3. Reporting

2.10.3.1. Depot

Basic

This report is presented in the form of charts, where the following parameters are distributed by month:



- 1. Drop size the amount of delivery for each month for the year;
- 2. Weight the total weight of the delivery for each month for the year;
- 3. Costs per weight expenses per unit of weight per month;
- 4. Average time window size
- 5. Within time window the percentage of deliveries that took place exactly within the time window.

Time Windows

With this option, you can display multiple time window reports for clients.



- 1. Average time window size Graphical representation of the time window width distribution for the selected objects (all locations or active orders). The wider the time windows, the better the optimization results.
- 2. Time window distribution A graphical representation of the time window layout on the timeline for the selected objects. The ideal condition for planning is a uniform and as wide distribution as possible.
- 3. The ratio of short time windows part of short time windows. The width of the time window can be set in the lower right corner.
- 4. Time windows without overlap Displays a list of all pairs of clients that don't have overlapping time windows and at the same time are at the maximum distance from each other (in the lower right corner).

If such customers order at the same time, they cannot be served by the same vehicle without waiting time. Usually in such cases, two vehicles have to go to the same place.

5. Short time windows

In the "Time" field in the lower right corner, you can enter the width of the time window and after clicking the "Refresh" button, a list of clients with time windows that are less than the entered value will be displayed.

2.10.3.2. Locations

This section contains location-related reports, based on both saved plan data and GPS data. In each report it is possible to choose the time interval for data collection.

O PI	an					
Basic	Delivery Days	Deli	very l	Directions		
From	1/18/2022		То	2/17/2022	Load]

2.10.3.2.1. Plan

Location data from saved plans are displayed in three tabs:

Basic

- Km Distance from depot.
- TWS Average width of time window.
- Stops Number of stops in given period.
- Costs Total cost of delivery in given period.
- Wght Total weight of all orders in given period.
- Vol Total volume of all orders in given period
- \$/Wei Average cost per delivery of one weight unit.
- \$/Vol Average cost per delivery of one volume unit.

🚺 Plan									
Basic Delivery	Days Delivery Directions								
From 1/19/202	22 🔳 To 2/18/2022 🔳	Loa	d						
No	Name	Km	TWS	Stops	Costs	Wght	Vol	\$/Wei	\$/Vol
11834	Anykščių sporto ir laisvalaikio cent	102.4	12:00	3	13.80	127	0.3	0.11	54.97
10295	mrida UAB.Algirdo g.27 a	93.0	08:00	2	7.15	69	0.1	0.10	60.54

Graphs on the right represents:

- Drop size The dependency between the size of the order and the width of the time window.
- Costs The dependency between delivery unit cost and distance of a location from depot.
- Costs The dependency between delivery unit cost and average drop size.





Delivery days

This tab shows the uniformity of the distribution of traffic between the individual days of the week. Customers who do not comply with the set delivery days are marked in red. They are marked in red on the map too.

O Pla	an												
Basic	Delivery D	ays Deliver	y Direction	ns									
rom	11/1/2021	To 2/18/2		.022		.oad							
Day		NoOfLoc	OutDD	Wght	Vol								
Sunday		0	0	0	0								
Monday		701	0	270,609	808.1								
Tuesday		638	0	235,760	729.0								
Wednesday		875	0	207,835	707.6								
Thursday		792	0	237,790	780.1								
Friday		683	0	187,672	658.5								
Saturday		0	0	0	0								
•	No	Name	me			Delivery days	Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
• 10005		Ukrainietiški patiekalai UAB					0	1	5	6	6	3	0
•	10014	Bajony	smulte U	AB, Islandijo	o pi.3		0	0	1	0	0	3	0

Delivery directions

Here you can change the assigned delivery directions for customers and at the same time check the uniformity of deliveries on individual days of the week. Customers can be selected either from a table or directly from the map using a polygon. For selected customers, the delivery days can be easily set by
pressing the "Edit" button. The changes are not saved until the "Save" button is pressed.

2.10.3.2.2. GPS

This analysis is focused on the average duration of the stop at a particular customer and compliance with the required delivery window.

											PS	🕡 GI
			Details	•	Load		2/18/2022	To)2 <mark>1</mark>	12/20/20	rom
AfterTW	BefTW	Stops	PairPrc	elay	AT@S				ne	Nam	No	
0%	0%	7	31	0:07	00:03		atiekalai UAB	ški p	ainiet	Ukra	10005	
0%	0%	1	76	0:01	00:07	pl.3	UAB, Islandijos	nuklé	arų sn	Bajo	10014	
	0% 0%	7	31 76	0:07 00:01	00:03 00:07	B	atiekalai UAB UAB, Islandijos	ški pi nukle	ainiet arų sn		10005 10014	

The table lists:

- all locations
- the average stop time
- · the average difference from the planned time
- the total number of stops for given period.
- · percentage of points that were visited before and after time window

Detailed information can be obtained for each location by pressing the "Details" button.



Details include a graphical representation of the vehicle's physical stops, a comparison of the planned and actual durations of the stops, and an analysis of the timeliness of arrivals.

2.10.3.2.3. Depot

The report is used to check the assignment of locations to individual depots.

More than one depots must be activated for analysis. After pressing the "**Analysis**" button, the assignment of all locations to the optimal depot will be calculated on the basis of the distance.

Locations can also be selected in a table or in a map (using a polygon) and change the assigned depot by pressing the "**Edit**" button. The current assignment can be exported, but it is not possible to save it directly to system.

You can also check the locations assignment on the map and switch between current setting and a new one using buttons "**Current**" and "**New**".

2.10.3.3. Vehicles

Summary table on the use of transport for the period.

Basic

- Vehicle weight;
- The volume of the vehicle;
- The number of days the vehicle has been used;
- Number of routes per vehicle for the period;
- Average daily mileage;
- Paid mileage;
- · Average daily use of a particular vehicle;
- Loading by weight in %
- Loading by volume in %
- Cost per unit of weight
- · Costs per unit of volume

Ø Vehicles												
Basic GPS												
From 1/19/2022		To 2/18	/2022		Load							
Number plate	\checkmark	Wght	Vol	Days	Routes	Km	Km toll	Duration	WUtil	VUtil	\$/Wei	\$/Vol
GTB 579 MB At		4,700	15.0	12	12	226.0	0	07:53	52%	41%	0.07	27.23

The graphs on the right show:

- The dependence of the cost of weight on the capacity of the vehicle
- The dependence of the percentage load of a vehicle on its capacity
- The dependence of the average daily time of using a vehicle on its capacity







The **GPS** tab provides the following information:

- Planned mileage by vehicle
- Difference in mileage (red indicator overrun, green indicator fewer kilometers than planned)
- Total duration of stops
- Actual stop duration difference (red indicator stops lasted longer, green faster)
- Total route duration
- Actual difference in route duration

Vehicles										
Basic GPS										
From 1/19/2022		To 2/18/	/2022		Load					
Number plate	\checkmark	Wght	Vol	Days	Km	Diff	StpDur	Diff	Duration	Diff
GUZ 927 MB At	\checkmark	4,500	16.0	6	1,343.5	106%	16:13	82%	44:20	101%

The graphs on the right show:

- Difference in mileage for all vehicles
- · Difference in stop times
- · The difference in the total duration of routes





2.10.3.4. Standings

The report allows you to display the standings of vehicles for a given time period to a predefined distance from a specified point.

You can select a point on the map by holding down the "Ctrl" key and clicking on the map.

6 Standings						- □	×
From 2/8/2022 To 2/18/2022 Distance 1500 Load	▼ Date	Time	No	Numb	Dur		
	2/8/22	09:10	LSO 415	LSO 4	00:05		
	2/8/22	11:55	LIV 513	LIV 51	00:02		
	2/8/22	11:57	LIV 513	LIV 51	00:08		
	2/9/22	09:09	LSO 415	LSO 4	00:04		
	2/9/22	09:57	LSO 415	LSO 4	00:07		
	2/9/22	10:35	LSO 415	LSO 4	00:02		
	2/10/22	09:17	LSO 415	LSO 4	00:05		
	2/11/22	08:50	LSO 415	LSO 4	00:05		
28 m	2/14/22	09:00	LSO 415	LSO 4	00:08		
	2/14/22	09:31	LSO 415	LSO 4	00:04		
Kono g Incarony Contraction	2/14/22	09:34	LSO 415	LSO 4	00:05		
Varnių tiltas	2/15/22	08:14	LSO 415	LSO 4	00:02		
Nuckalher Nuckalher	2/15/22	08:27	LSO 415	LSO 4	00:15		
	2/16/22	09:04	LSO 415	LSO 4	00:06		
Nuokalnės.9	2/16/22	10:13	MAR 529	MAR	00:06		
P Downlaws							
	eug						
and the second sec							
2012/2010 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	-						
The second							
Maria The second							
and the second second	19						
Karsug Žaliakalnis							
and the second sec	3						
Starting & The Server	1						
A Distance of the second secon							

The second option is to display all points on the map where vehicles stop often, without any planned stop. Just select "Everywhere" for this option.

9 🛈 S	standings										
P From	2/8/2022		То	2/18/2022		Distance	1500		Load	-	Date
		• 1			12	CI. Witte	14		Arour	d point	2/8/2
\rightarrow		TI	+			X	1	24	✓ Everv	where	2/8/22
	1 de		11			Zemgale				le	2/8/22
	A - K	151	19.	Contraction (X	5	(-	18 19 1	1	2/9/2

2.11. Admin

2.11.1. Files

Here you can to download files to work with the system.

These are always zipped files that need to be saved to a local disk and then unzipped.

CSV

- Reader Excel file that allows you to print itineraries. The source is a csv plan file.
- Writer Excel file generating csv file with orders, that can be uploaded into Rinkai.

Reporting – Excel file with a pivot table linked to saved and evaluated plans.

Manual – Download the latest version of the manual.

2.11.2. User management

A user with local administrator rights can create new users, user groups, manage permissions and passwords in this section.

2.11.3. Web services

- Delete locations and orders Clean up the communication tables with orders.
- Delete plans Clean up communication schedules with schedules.

2.11.4. Computer

- CPU benchmark Local processor performance test.
- Java info Information about the available version of Java on the local computer.

2.11.5. User

- Change password Change of user's password.
- Logout Logout from the system. You can also sign out using the icon in the top right corner of the screen.

2.11.6. Errors

Displays a list of errors that occurred during the current system run.

2.11.7. Log

Log – Displays a list of operations and system messages that occurred during the current system run.

Server Log – Displays a list of operation for the selected period.

3. Web-portal for drivers

Access to the portal can be found at the link

It can be used both from your phone and from your computer.

3.1. Authorization

Mandatory fields for authorization:

12:36	''II 🕹
n rinkai	
Key	
••••	
Depot	
Demo (clients_5)	
Driver	
Vehicle	
16	
Navigation	
 Default 	
Google Navigation	
HERE WeGo	

н



- Key;
- Depot number;
- Driver/Vehicle number.

Next, choose a navigation method from the list.

The following navigation methods are currently available: Google, HERE WeGo, OsmAnd, Sygic, Waze, Yandex

The route is laid to each point separately, depending on the current location.

Then choose mode convenient for you – light or dark. Save data.

After saving the data, you will be transferred to a page with a list of all available routes for the current and next day.



3.2.

3.3.

3.4. Functionality

ABM CLOUD

3.4.1. Map

When you open the selected route, the first thing you can see is the map.

All waypoints are displayed on the map. There are some buttons on the top corners:



- 1. Shows current location
- 2. Changes the vector image to a road route
- 3. Map zoom

You can tap on any point to show:

- Sequence number in the route;
- Name;
- Address

The following buttons are also available:

- Navigation to this point from the current location;
- Maintenance button.

3.4.2. Information panel

Under the map there is an information panel, which displays data about the entire route:

- Start time;
- End time;
- Duration of the route;
- Number of points in the route;
- Total mileage of the route;
- Quantity all information that you transmit in units, i.e. weight, volume, number of pieces, pallets, etc.

3.4.3. Point card

Point cards are arranged in the order they are planned to visit along the route.

In the header of the card:

- Serial number;
- · Scheduled time of visit;
- Point name;
- Address;
- Time window;
- Distance to it from the previous one in km;
- Comment (if it is);

If it will be opened:

- Location number as in the system;
- Name;
- Address;
- Time window;
- Order number as in the system;
- Time for unloading at the point;
- Quantity units that are transferred;
- Comment.

3.4.4. Maintenance

When you tap on the "Serve" button then will be opened the page where the driver could fill a data:

- Status "delivered" / "not delivered"
- Comment you can write any comment why the order was not delivered;
- Activities;
- Attach a photo;
- Attach a signature;

📶 rinkai < Client1101104 Status Delivered Not delivered Comment Photos ÷ Signature

All this information becomes available to the dispatcher in the Rinkai system in the GPS tab by selecting the vehicle – this route – the list of points in the route – display the columns through the context menu with the right-click of mouse:

•	PISt	AcSt	No	Name		City		PairPrc Time win		ndow	Arriv	Delay	
٠	1	1	Client1101104	Client1101104					08:00-18:00		08:35		
•	2	2	Client1101113	Client1101113			Images	And Sig	nature		09:03		
•	3	3	Client1101118	Client1101118			Go to				09:13		
•	4	4	Client1101116	Client1101116			Colum	ns	٢	Street			
•	5	5	Client1101119	Client1101119					08:00-21:00	Image	r		
•	6	6	Client1101102	Client1101102					08:00-18:00	Order	-		
٠	7	7	Client1101103	Client1101103					10: <mark>00-</mark> 12:00	Urden.			
•	8	8	Client1101115	Client1101115					08:00-19:00	Notific	tation		
•	9	9	Client1101012	Client1101012					08:00-17:00	✓ Arriva	time dela	У	
•	10	10	Client1101101	Client1101101					08:00-17:00	Actua	ie		
•	11	11	Client1101117	Client1101117					09:00-20:00	✓ Depar	ture time o	delay	
•	12	12	Client1101105	Client1101105					08:00-13:00	Actual departure time			
•	13	13	Client1101114	Client1101114					09:00-18:00	✓ Durati	on delay		
										Actua	duration		
										Comm	ient		
										Comm	ent		
										Comm	ient 2	_	
										Delive	red		
										Comm	ent		
									1	Activit	ies		
	Tim	ne	Duration	PairPrc	Latitude	Long	gitude			Image	s		
							N		112	Signature			
							NO CO	ntent in t	abie	Save o	o <mark>lumns la</mark>	yout	

3.5. Location Photo

That the driver who is driving on the route for the first time knows how the point looks like, there is a function for adding a photo for the location.

There are two ways to do this:

1. If you already have a photo, then in the Rinkai system on the "Location" tab, select the one you need – click on the **"Edit"** button – add a photo in "Photos".

In the driver's portal, it will be available if you open the client card and tap on the "Images" button.

Depot	s Orders Vehicles Planning
Add	Edit
Chen	Basic Advanced Time Windows Delivery Days Images
Client	Add Edit Delete
Client	Image Comment
Client	
Client	No content in table
Client	
Client	OK Cancel




2. The driver, in turn, can also add a real photo of the location through the "Serve" – attach a photo. Further, through the Rinkai system, the GPS tab, the dispatcher can immediately assign this photo to the location:

Select the desired point and click "Images and Signature" through the context menu. A tab with a photo will open, you need to right-click "Add Images to location".

•	PISt	AcSt	No	Name		City	PairPro
	1	1	Client1101104	Client1101104			
•	2	2	Client1101113	Client1101113		Images And Sig	nature
•	3	3	Client1101118	Client1101118		Go to	•
•	4	4	Client1101116	Client1101116		Columns	Þ
•	5	5	Client1101119	Client1101119			

	Images And Signature							
	Images	Signature						
-	1							
	16							
ſ	A	Add Images To Location Save						

3.6. Adding a portal to your phone's home screen

For convenience, in order not to enter the browser every time, it is possible to bring the portal to the main screen of the phone.

IOS:





Android:



ABM CLOUD